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F O R E W O R D

This is my first Annual Report as Grant Thornton’s CEO and I am delighted 
to have been given the privilege to lead this firm at an important stage of its 
evolution. 

There is no escaping the fact that it has been a tough year for Grant Thornton. 
The decision by an individual to disclose confidential and private information 
about the firm, and about our former CEO Sacha Romanovitch, was 
unprofessional and disappointing. I want to make it clear that Grant Thornton 
UK condemns such actions and take the opportunity to apologise to Sacha 
and thank her for her leadership.

2017/18 was also defined by a financial performance which was below our 
expectations and, whilst there were many positives, our overall results for the 
year were disappointing. This was a combination of significant work coming 
to an end and not being replaced, the exiting of work no longer core to our 
business and the disappointing take-up of new propositions – in particular 
the ongoing cost of our investment and withdrawal of Geniac, our platform to 
support back office functions for small businesses.

On a positive note we further strengthened our strong brand in 2017/18, whilst 
at the same time taking bold steps in the market to set us up for sustainable 
and profitable growth in the future. This included restructuring the firm to serve 
three strategic markets, aligning ourselves with the clients we serve. We are the 
only professional services firm to be structured in this way and whilst it is still 
early days, it is already having a positive impact on how we operate.

This Annual Report is an opportunity to consider our operating environment, 
reflect on the achievements and key learnings of 2017/18, to outline some of 
the steps we have taken to drive the firm’s growth and to look forward to what I 
believe is a positive future.

“I am confident that with a relentless focus on our 
three markets and a purpose which is underpinned 
by a strong culture, we will add value to clients, 
create opportunities for our people, deliver high 
quality work and achieve sustainable growth”
 Dave Dunckley, CEO 
Grant Thornton UK
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Our operating environment 
The last year has been a turbulent time in the UK - both for 
the professional services sector and for the UK more broadly. 
Valid questions are being asked about the role and makeup of 
the UK’s audit market. Brexit continues to be a challenge for 
many businesses, with the lack of certainty making it harder 
for them to prepare. And public services, already under severe 
fiscal pressure, face ongoing and growing talent and skills 
shortfalls.

In May 2018 we announced our decision to stop tendering 
for statutory audit work in the FTSE 350, as a result of the 
systemic challenges and barriers inherent in this market. We 
will continue to provide audit services to our existing FTSE 350 
clients but as we approach the end of the calendar year, our 
position on tendering remains unchanged.

In terms of market reform we have been and will continue to 
be a leading voice for change. We provided comprehensive 
feedback to both the Competition and Markets Authority 
(CMA) market study and the review being led by Sir John 
Kingman. In my recent interactions with the Financial 
Reporting Council (FRC) I reiterated that, under my 
leadership, we are committed to supporting the process and 
playing our part in reforming the audit market and regulatory 
environment. 

Our market focus
We significantly changed how we face the market during 
2018. In May we restructured to be the only firm in the UK 
organised by the markets we serve. We are beginning to see 
the benefits of this and I believe this sets us up well for the 
future.

Our three markets, summarised in the following pages, are as 
follows: 
• Large and complex clients – large employers and 

businesses of scale and complexity

• Mid-market clients – medium sized businesses, the engine 
room of the economy 

• Public Services clients – public sector, Not for profit and 
wider civil society organisations 

We work for clients across these three markets. Our private 
sector clients alone employ around 6.5 million people and 
our work in the public sector includes essential audit work for 
large councils, such as Birmingham City Council, which on its 
own has revenues of £3 billion and serves a population of over 
1.1 million.

Having a market focus keeps us customer-centric and 
allows us to develop unique insights. It enables us to tailor 
propositions and create value for clients in each market 
segment, as well as positioning us well to capitalise on our 
brand position to drive future sustainable growth. In 2017/18 
alone we saw a 55% increase in how our firm is perceived 
in terms of it being seen as differentiated, meaningful and 
salient. This demonstrates a sustained year-on-year reputation 
and credibility improvement with our target clients and 
positions us well for future growth. 

Mid-market

Large and complex

Public services

FOREWORD
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Our purpose and culture
Having a focused approach in each of our markets also 
means we can grow and evolve our purpose in a meaningful, 
relevant and impactful way. Purpose has been fundamental 
to the growth of our brand, as well as being a key factor in 
attracting and retaining talent. Under my leadership we will 
continue to have a strong focus on purpose. This will include 
us continuing to speak out on issues which impact our clients, 
our people and our industry. 

It is clear to me, however, that we need to evolve our purpose 
so that it resonates with all of our people in a more meaningful  
and consistent way. Many of our people joined Grant 
Thornton because they have a strong social conscience. I 
want to grow our sense of social responsibility but to do it 
in a way that is relevant to what our people do on a day-to-
day basis. We will do that by ensuring purpose is rooted in 
a commercial context, by focusing on our clients and the 
challenges and opportunities we can help them with.

And it really is all about our clients – how we interact with 
them and serve them. Our people spend most of their time 
with our clients and it is our culture of shared enterprise 
that creates the space to share ideas on how, as a firm, we 
can better fulfil our purpose. Under my leadership Shared 
Enterprise will continue to be a key strategic focus and market 
differentiator. 

Shared Enterprise is our way of saying we’re creating a 
different kind of firm – one where every one of us will have an 
opportunity to share our views and have their ideas listened 
to. A firm where our best thinking will be done together, where 
our leaders are open and transparent, where everyone is 
actively involved in playing their part and where everyone will 
be rewarded for achieving superior business performance. All 
of our people are expected to share responsibility for bringing 
our purpose to life and then in return they share the reward 
for doing so.

Those ideas will only come if we continue to develop Grant 
Thornton as a great place to work. While we have much 
more to do, our hard work is beginning to have an impact 
with attrition falling and our employee net promoter score 
increasing from nine in 2016/17 to 18 in 2017/18. 

We were delighted to be awarded a 2018 Queen’s Award 
for Enterprise in the ‘Promoting Opportunity’ category. This 
recognises the firm’s efforts to help improve social mobility 
in the workplace. In addition Grant Thornton was also 
recognised by the second annual Social Mobility Employer 
Index for positive action to improve social mobility in the 
workplace, ranking number two in the 2018 index of all UK 
employers. 

Finally, mandatory reporting in 2017 highlighted widespread 
systemic gender pay issues in the UK. The system and cultures 
in which UK businesses operate undoubtedly needs to be 
reformed. Our gender pay gap data showed that where 
people in our firm are doing the same or similar work, or work 
of equal value they are equally rewarded. Our big challenge 
is to address gender imbalance at the more senior higher paid 
levels. Building on measures and initiatives that are already 
in place, we have set targets and a programme of work to 
address this and build wider diversity and inclusion.

Creating a diverse and inclusive workforce is good for 
business and is central to our approach at Grant Thornton. 
We are committed to making sure that the opportunities 
within our firm are equally accessible for everyone – 
regardless of background or gender – and that our firm is 
representative of society. 

FOREWORD
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Quality
We were encouraged by the most recent FRC audit 
quality review in June 2018 which found improvement in 
our performance. Whilst this was clearly good news we 
acknowledge that there is still work to be done in this area and 
are focused on maintaining and continuing to improve quality 
standards across the firm.

As a regulated business we faced up to the responsibility 
of past issues that reinforced our drive to strengthen 
the robustness of our approach to quality and building 
our reputation. We have now concluded our regulator’s 
investigations into our historical approach to ethical controls, 
which fell short of those standards. While the matters dated 
back to 2010, it was nevertheless deeply disappointing. As 
soon as we became aware of the issues back in 2012, we 
instigated a full review of the firm’s processes and controls and 
implemented changes to prevent such an independence issue 
arising again.

In May 2018 we created a new Strategic Leadership Team role, 
with specific responsibility for quality and ethics, to further 
reinforce the seriousness with which Grant Thornton embraces 
quality within the firm.  This role will continue to be a key part 
of my SLT.

Quality is central to our purpose, a key driver of growth 
and a central part of the culture we are building here. We 
are relentlessly focused on delivering the highest quality 
standards, managing risk by adhering to our regulatory 
environment and building our reputation in the marketplace in 
terms of our technical personal behaviours.

FOREWORD

Outlook
2017/18 has been a year of transition. We have seen it in our 
external operating environment and we have seen it within 
our firm. The world is complex and volatile and there are big 
challenges and huge opportunities. We see a clear place for 
us in helping our clients tackle some of these challenges whilst 
grasping the opportunities. We also know the steps we need to 
take to ensure our operating model sets us up well to do this.

 Grant Thornton’s brand strength is at an all-time high and we 
have a shared enterprise culture that is unique in professional 
services. I am confident that with a focus on our three markets 
and a purpose underpinned by a strong culture, we will add 
value to clients, create opportunities for our people, deliver 
high quality work and achieve sustainable growth.

Dave Dunckley
CEO, Grant Thornton UK LLP
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Large and complex

“Our vision is to build trust and integrity in markets 
by creating, protecting and transforming value 
in Large and complex organisations. Our clients 
in this market, who often operate globally, expect 
professional service providers to operate in a 
comparable global fashion, with consistent, 
integrated coverage and seamless delivery models. 
Our aim is to fulfil our clients’ desire to work with an 
organisation that can bring a full range of advisory, 
tax and accounting services globally.”
Mark Byers

O U R  M A R K E T S



Key facts Key services

51%
We provide advisory 
services to 51% of 
the FTSE 100

1/3
We provide advisory 
services to 1 in 3 
companies in the 
FTSE 250

In the past three 
years, we have 
worked with 17 of the 
largest 20 European 
and US-based banks

Business risk services, 
including internal audit

Forensic advisory and 
investigations for financial 
crime and anti-money 
laundering, tax evasion, 
bribery and corruption, 
competition and cyber 
risks

Full range of advisory, 
audit and tax services 
to the financial services 
industry, including 
business consulting, 
regulatory advisory, 
corporate finance and 
actuarial services

Insolvency and  
restructuring services 

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  7  

OUR MARKETS

Large and complex

Our teams work with FTSE 350, S&P 500 and 
other businesses operating in global markets 
by providing a range of advisory, accounting 
and tax services across industry sectors and 
organisational functions.

Market overview 
Large and complex clients operate in increasingly global markets and expect consistent 
capability and service delivery. This market experienced significant disruption in the wake 
of the global financial crisis. Financial services in particular was affected by changes in the 
regulatory landscape and conduct-related charges, resulting in 80% of advisory spend in 
financial services being rooted in regulatory and compliance requirements. 

Whilst much of the work to comply with legislation introduced in direct response to the 
financial crisis is well progressed, the backdrop of geopolitical, trade and economic 
uncertainty continues to trigger demand for our services. International organisations  
are redrawing their operating models as they prepare for the UK’s withdrawal from the  
EU and as they respond to shocks to the global geopolitical and economic system –  
from unexpected changes to tariffs and availability of funds to supply chain concerns. 

Technology is a key driver of change, both to automate activities and reduce costs as well 
as to introduce distinctive customer offerings and drive growth. Whilst organisations are 
at different stages of deploying AI, robotics, distributed ledger and other digital disruption 
technologies, we find that Large and complex clients are overwhelmingly investing greater 
attention and resources in technology-driven innovation and transformation. At the same 
time, cyber risks and data protection considerations increasingly focus the attention 
of companies’ boards and senior executives and drive demand for our advisory and 
assurance services. 
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OUR MARKETS

Key 2017/18 highlights:
Forensic
• The Forensic practice, which comprises 120 people in the 

UK , has experienced significant growth over the past three 
years, and new partner and director appointments and 
promotions have been made in the areas of investigations, 
digital forensics, financial crime and expert witness.

• Investigations in particular has seen significant recent 
work, including a cross-border assignment for a leading 
corporate household name, and positions the Forensic 
practice to continue to capitalise on its expertise to deliver 
complex, sensitive investigations. The reputation of the 
practice to act on large disputes, in particular those 
relating to financial services, continues to be recognised by 
the market.

Financial Services Group
• The practice saw a number of record outcomes in 2017/18, 

even as fee income consolidated slightly from a record 
2016/17 as some large-scale engagements started in the 
prior year were successfully completed, notably our ring-
fencing work with Barclays.

• Financial Services Business Risk Services and Actuarial & 
Risk had record years, driven by demand for regulatory 
and risk assurance services as Financial Services clients 
focused on the implementation of General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) and Markets in financial instruments 
Directive II (MiFID II), together with managing technology 
and cyber risk.

• We also saw record years in the insurance and asset 
management sectors as we completed a number of 
independent expert, regulatory assurance and operational 
advisory engagements. Our Audit and Tax teams also 
continued to generate significant activity in these sectors, 
with these services accounting for approximately 50% of 
our fee income in asset management.

Business Risk Services
• The business had a record year. The business has now 

posted 5 consecutive years of growth, with fee income 
almost doubling from 2014/15.

• This growth has been supported by technology investment, 
such as the global roll-out of TeamMate, the leading 
internal audit software, as well as investments in high 
profile areas such as People and Culture (which saw 40% 
year-on-year fee growth) and Programme Assurance.

• The year also saw the launch of the Business Risk Services 
app, with its initial offerings on the risk assessment of 
culture and of GDPR.

Insolvency
• The Insolvency team straddles the UK, BVI and Cayman 

practices and is split across contentious and non-
contentious engagements.

• The UK market for non-contentious insolvency remains 
tough, with peaks in insolvencies and high-profile failures in 
sectors such as retail, healthcare and construction. However, 
there have been significant opportunities arising from the 
international market as effective insolvency regimes are 
increasingly critical to engendering trust and integrity in 
countries’ economies. We have capitalised on this with closer 
working relations with Grant Thornton International member 
firms in India and Cyprus, for example.

• On the contentious insolvency side, there is a greater 
recognition both domestically and internationally of 
the value of insolvency as a tool for asset recovery. 
Additionally, there is greater scrutiny over the fiduciary 
duties of both directors, shareholders and advisors in 
light of high profile collapses which has led to increased 
litigation as a tool for recovery. This, coupled with the 
increased use of litigation funding has meant more cases 
can be progressed which in turn creates more opportunities 
in the market. We capitalised on this by starting our own 
litigation fund. 
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Moving forward
Our aim is to continue to serve Large and complex clients with consistent, 
integrated coverage and seamless delivery models both within the UK and with 
other Grant Thornton International member firms. 

We have launched our Global Financial Services Collaboration Programme, 
working with other Grant Thornton International member firms to provide a 
platform to accelerate growth and to invest in next-generation solutions and 
capabilities that meet the needs of large, complex and global clients. To start, 
the programme is focusing on deepening relationships with and services to 10 
selected global banking clients clustered in London, New York, Frankfurt and 
Zurich. Over time, the programme will serve additional global Financial Services 
clients with expanded, consistent capabilities across Financial Services and 
Grant Thornton International member firms.

Our strategic focus across the Large and complex market is to build on the 
platform of our market-leading forensic investigation, contentious insolvency, 
financial services regulatory advisory and business risk services capabilities, 
underpinned by market leading credentials, quality people, an entrepreneurial 
approach with full service offerings and strong client relationships.

OUR MARKETS
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Mid-market
“Our brand with our mid-market clients has 
never been stronger, adding more clients in 
2017/18 than in any previous year. We see 
a great opportunity to continue to grow at 
speed in this market segment. ”
David Munton

O U R  M A R K E T S



Key facts Key services

10%
We support over 
10% of the UK’s mid-
market businesses 

2.5X
Our Growth 365 
clients are growing 
at 2.5 times the 
growth rates in their 
market segments 

We have helped over 

1,500 
businesses using the 
Apprenticeship Levy

Audit and assurance

Tax

Restructuring

Corporate Finance

Business Consulting

Growth Services 
(including talent 
solutions)

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  11  

Mid-market

We create, protect and transform value in the 
mid-market. Our core focus is on companies 
with revenues of up to £1 billion.

Market overview 
Our research amongst 1,000 mid-market leaders shows that this market is confident about 
their future growth prospects and their ability to navigate change against a backdrop of 
challenging political and economic uncertainty. 

Mid-market companies are good at identifying and managing risk and generally see 
strong opportunities for growth. Talent, competition and productivity continue to be key 
themes with this market segment and technology is fast emerging as a potential growth 
accelerator for them. 63% are looking beyond their sector for growth opportunities, with 
over 60% already operating globally. 

With the inevitable impact created by the ongoing uncertainty around Brexit, mid-market 
businesses seem resigned to the fact that there is nothing they can do in the short to 
medium term, apart from remain informed, plan for contingencies and ensure they do not 
over-commit resources in the near future. 

At Grant Thornton we help mid-market businesses meet many of these challenges.  
Our extensive experience across markets and sectors and with exciting and fast growing 
companies, mean we are perfectly placed to help business create, protect and transform 
value.

OUR MARKETS
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Key 2017/18 highlights
Our brand and people 
Our brand with our mid-market clients has never been 
stronger and we have added more clients in 2017/18 than in 
any previous year. We see a great opportunity to continue to 
grow at speed in this market segment. Our mid-market teams 
in London and the regions include 400 graduates and school 
leavers – some of the brightest young minds. 

Our aim is to create a great client experience so we also 
work hard to recruit non-accountancy talent to give a fresh 
dynamic to our client conversations. 

In 2017/18 we also launched Grant Thornton Select, a 
connected community of highly experienced, talented 
interim finance professionals with a recognised accountancy 
qualification who work on a wide range of assignments for 
Grant Thornton clients. We created Grant Thornton Select to 
help our clients whose finance teams need extra support from 
time to time.

London
In London our financial advisory team delivered 24% growth 
year-on-year, working on a record number of transactions 
– in the calendar year to 31 December 2017 our corporate 
finance advisory team advised on 188 deals worth nearly  
£6 billion.

Our restructuring team worked on some of the highest profile 
assignments in the UK including Wonga where, earlier this 
year, we were appointed as administrators. We also supported 
our Indian member firm in building a team to respond to the 
change of insolvency law in that country.

Our business consulting team led a consortium that undertook 
a detailed review of the UK Steel sector on behalf of the UK 
Government and UK Steel Council. The report identified £3.2 
billion in growth opportunities over the next ten years in various 
markets predominantly in construction and automotive.

Regions
The North and Midlands teams saw solid growth for the 
year, building upon what was a strong year in 2016/17 and 
demonstrating return from the significant partner and team 
investments made over the last two to three years across  
the region.

This demonstrates that when we are focused, when we 
understand the market and when we communicate our full 
range of services to a targeted audience, we have the ability 
to offer value and grow at speed.

Propositions 
In 2017/18 we launched Enterprise Applications Strategy and 
Implementation practice, working with clients to help them 
plan for and successfully implement technology programmes 
in the cloud. 

We have co-designed a global mobility platform which 
enables global employers to manage the tax and social 
security costs and risks for their global workforce on a real 
time basis. 

We now have clients across a broad range of sectors with our 
Growth 365 service, which is helping them grow at 2.5 times 
the rate of their peers in their given markets. 

Growth 365 was also recognised by professional services 
peers at the 2018 Managing Partners Awards when voted 
winner of Most Innovative Client Service. 

Our Growth Finance team have been selected as finalists 
for the 2018 Growth Investor Awards in the Industry Game 
Changer category for their national approach to connecting 
growth capital with businesses.

Nearly 300 Management professionals have already started 
their Executive MBA with Cranfield and Grant Thornton.

OUR MARKETS
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Moving forward
We want to be known as the stand-out firm that the mid-
market turns to first when it wants to discuss value – whether 
that be creating value, transforming value or protecting value.

Building upon the strong foundations of client service offerings 
in 2017/18 we will continue to take our whole portfolio to the 
market in an exciting way. We will continue to listen and to 
respond to our clients’ needs, in particular developing and 
scaling key propositions and services in international/exports, 
talent solutions as well as digital and cyber.

Operational rigour will underpin our efforts, ensuring that 
we continue to broaden our understanding of this market, 
the clients and those businesses we believe we can add 
value, helping them to protect what value they already have, 
transform what they do to add more value, or develop new 
opportunities for the future

OUR MARKETS
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Public services

“There is an opportunity in public services to rebuild 
trust and support through simpler more transparent 
reporting, through more effective audit and through 
enhanced support with a focus on insight and skills 
transfer.” 
Sarah Howard

O U R  M A R K E T S



Key facts Key services

Our data analytics 
and insight platforms 
are used by over 

1,000 

public service professionals

Internal and  
external audit

Insights and Analytics

Advisory

Tax in the Not for  
profit sector

50%
At any given time we work 
with half of all councils on 
audit or advisory

We have a 

33%
market share for NHS audit 
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Public services 

Our team work to help public service 
organisations, businesses and the 
communities they serve to develop their own 
sustainable futures, including areas such as 
health, social care, housing and infrastructure 
to help shape local environments where 
business and people thrive.

Market overview 
Rising demand, limited resources and increasing expectations are creating challenges 
across public services on a scale we have never seen before. In addition, we are seeing a 
broader breakdown in trust, particularly of central government, but also local government, 
the NHS, charities and the private sector often as a result of high profile failings and 
financial crises.

We know we need simpler and more transparent information nationally, and locally, to 
engage people, politicians and businesses around difficult choices on tax and service 
delivery. We believe there is an opportunity in public services to rebuild trust through 
simpler more transparent reporting, through more effective audit and through enhanced 
support, insights, monitoring and service innovation.

The Grant Thornton Public services group is responding to these challenges by making 
significant investments in the development of unique insight and analytics platforms,  
and associated advisory and consulting propositions to drive collaboration and public 
service innovation. 

OUR MARKETS
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Key 2017/18 highlights:
Insights & Analytics
• York City Council adopted our Vibrant Economy Index 

because it was seen as independent, robust, comparative and 
well aligned to the One Planet York vision and framework.

• CFO Insights - Over 100 authorities in England are signed 
up to our online analysis tool to help local authorities to 
improve their financial position.

• Supply Chain Insights - We launched a new insights and 
benchmarking platform to support supply chain assurance 
and competitor intelligence in public services.

• We launched our London housing pipeline analysis – a 
‘first of its kind’ analysis, in collaboration with London First, 
tracking the disruption in housing supply between planning 
submission, approvals and building completions. 

Advisory
• We invested in new advisory capabilities to build on the 

targeted insights we provide to clients. Focused around 
Adult Social Care, Children’s services and Corporate & 
Place Transformation, we have won some significant client 
engagements supporting the London Borough of Ealing 
and London Borough of Lambeth.

• Our major advisory engagements included advising 
Department for Transport on the procurement of the new 
HS2 operator as part of the West Coast Partnership and 
Transport for Wales as they awarded a major new contract 
for rail services.

• For Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 
(BEIS) we developed guidance on ‘Financing Heat Networks 
in the UK’ to support both Local Authorities and suppliers in 
understanding some of the issues, risks and opportunities 
around financing heat networks in the UK. 

Not for profit
• In 2017/18 we began testing a new Impact Assurance 

service to help charities understand the robustness of their 
impact statements, as well as the lessons to be learned 
from success or failure. 

• We added a number of clients who specialise in supporting 
a wide range of organisations that are not registered 
charities but are Not for profit, such as membership and 
professional bodies. This highly specialised work is a 
growing part of our Not for profit offering.

• Our team has been working closely with some of the 
largest housing associations across the country to help 
them prepare for mergers and work out how to unlock 
efficiencies which accelerate the delivery of new homes.

Public sector audit
• We delivered nearly 95% of our public sector audits (over 

200 in total) within four months of year-end in line with 
statutory deadlines, despite major changes to deadlines 
and having to respond to some hugely complex technical 
issues.

Culture & leadership
• Our Head of Public services, Sarah Howard, assumed 

the role of CIPFA President for a 12 month term, bringing 
a unique perspective to the role as she is the first in this 
position with a corporate background. 

• Placemakers Programme – during the year, along with 
Collaborate CIC, we have developed a unique proposition 
for leaders of place, including use of our Insights & 
Analytics capability. 

• We delivered our third programme of capacity building for 
senior finance people from 15 London Boroughs, and our 
second development programme for senior finance officers 
of 7 West Midlands authorities.

Service delivery
• We completed the second of two years as the strategic 

partner to the London Borough of Tower Hamlets, leading a 
consortium supporting whole organisation transformation.

• We were engaged by the District Councils Network to 
produce a national toolkit to support transformation in 
localities which has already led to further advisory work 
from individual districts.

• We were engaged by Sheffield City Council to provide 
support on a number of assignments, including 
their development of Zero Based Budgeting, and the 
development of an Outcomes Fund for Sheffield.

OUR MARKETS



Moving forward
Our focus will be on developing significant advisory 
opportunities through deep sector expertise and a rigorous 
insights-led methodology. In addition we aim to significantly 
increase our advisory market share, ensuring we move closer 
to the sector-leading status that we already have in public 
sector and Not for profit audit. 

Over the coming months we will launch our Supply Chain 
Insights platform to help our clients address supply chain 
risks in light of the failures of major public services companies. 
We will also be launching new data analytics and consulting 
services to address financial sustainability challenges in the 
local government sector. Our new consulting capabilities 
will be addressing challenges around demand-led services, 
focused around Adult Social Care and Children’s Services. 

These services will be complimented by advisory services 
on projects and programmes in the infrastructure sector. 
Through our Major Projects Advisory service we support clients 
throughout the whole project life cycle.

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  17  

OUR MARKETS
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Our culture

“Our focus on creating a Shared Enterprise 
firm, still unique in professional services, 
continues apace. It reflects our belief that 
we can create a connected business with 
a longer-term approach that benefits 
wider society.”
Malcolm Gomersall

B U S I N E S S  R E V I E W
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Our strong social conscience is key to how we serve our clients and 
informs the commercial propositions and services we develop for them. 
It is also key to how we act as Grant Thornton people and the diversity 
of new talent we want to attract.

Our clients
We bring our purpose to life through our client promise - this defines 
the experience they should receive from us all of the time. We have 
invested time in listening and understanding our clients’ challenges 
and problems, to enable us to improve how we serve them now and in 
the future. 

This will support us in bringing our purpose to life for both our clients 
and our people. Our client net promoter score for the year was 60 
compared with 56 in 2017. We are making progress, but there is plenty 
more to do and we will increasingly use technology and innovation to 
allow us to listen to clients so we can respond with speed and agility. 

Our People
We have had a good year from a people perspective, continuing to 
attract talent across the UK. The strength and profile of our brand has 
meant we received almost 30,000 applications for advertised roles 
over the past 12 months. In addition our voluntary attrition rate has 
fallen slightly year-on-year, reflected by our increased employee 
net promoter scores, and we have seen an increase in internal 
transfers and secondments from colleagues gaining valuable 
experience across the firm.

Our focus on creating a Shared Enterprise firm, still unique in 
professional services, continues apace. It reflects our belief that we 
can create a connected business with a longer-term approach that 
benefits wider society. Shared Enterprise is built on the fundamental 
premise that if all of our people share ideas and share responsibilities, 
then they should also share in our superior profits. 

Our shared enterprise pool was paid out in October 2018, equating 
to 1.66% of base salary for employees who have been with us over 
the last three years. We are now into the second phase of our Shared 
Enterprise evolution and our focus will be on growth and innovation. 
We feel confident that our future performance will create superior 
growth and therefore more attractive rewards for all of our people. 

We believe that purpose connects business to its stakeholders in an 
increasingly connected but changing world. 

BUSINESS REVIEW



Externally recruit 20% more 
female senior managers and 
directors

An increase of parents returning to 
work after extended parental leave 
from 66% to 86%

An increase of parents remaining in 
work for longer than two years after 
return from extended parental leave 
from 57% to 77%

An increase of promotions following 
return to work after extended 
parental leave

Increase the percentage of flexible 
workers from 14% to 20%, and 
increase approvals of flexible 
working requests by 50%
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This gap is mostly down to the structure of our workforce. We 
have a greater number of men in senior roles and a higher 
proportion of women in our lower grade roles. The levels of 
remuneration at these different grades almost completely 
accounts for our gender pay gap.

When we adjust the data to take into account the number of 
men in senior roles, along with factors relating to service line, 
location and grade, our mean gender pay gap based on gross 
basic FTE pay was 1.7% as of April. Our most recent analysis 
in October 2017 has shown that we have further narrowed this 
adjusted gap to 1%.

Building on the measures and initiatives that are already in 
place, we have outlined additional steps and targets that 
we will introduce before 2020, to help tackle the gender 
imbalance specifically and build wider diversity and inclusion. 
These include:

• Work to help us understand and address the systemic 
barriers in our culture that are creating gender disparity

• Programmes and initiatives to educate our people on the 
causes of gender bias in our firm

• Measures to encourage and accelerate the progression of 
female talent in the firm

• Build a shared enterprise culture where everyone has the 
opportunity to thrive

Our firm
We have proactively pursued a market-leading approach to 
social mobility as we know that to attract diversity, we first 
need to embrace different ideas and approaches to the way 
we work and challenge ourselves to continue to create an 
inclusive culture. 

Ensuring opportunities are equally accessible to everyone 
regardless of background is core to our purpose. Through 
actively sharing our story to the wider market, we have seen 
some of the initiatives we have driven be embraced by larger 
organisations and have set the best practice standards. 

In addition, our efforts have been noted through the year with 
awards and recognition. Earlier this year we were thrilled that 
our efforts and long-standing commitment to improving social 
mobility, both within the firm and across the accountancy 
profession, were recognised in the Queen’s Award. Grant 
Thornton was also recognised by the second annual Social 
Mobility Employer Index for positive action to improve social 
mobility in the workplace, ranking number two in the 2018 
index of all UK employers. 

While we are proud of our even gender balance (51% men 
to 49% women across our combined businesses), our mean 
gender pay gap of just under 27% shows that we have more 
work to do on the balance of skills and seniority. 

We will measure progress in diversity and inclusion 
at Grant Thornton by creating annual transparency 
reports and quarterly reports for our business unit 
leaders using the below targets.

Reduced the reported pay gap to 
18-20% and ensure the adjusted 
gap remains in a range of -1% to 1%

Increase the percentage of female 
partners from 16% to 22% by 2020 
and 25% by 2022
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Quality
“The last year has seen the 
accountancy profession in the 
spotlight like never before. Major 
corporate collapses have caused 
politicians, pensioners, regulators, 
media and, of course, people at 
large to question the performance 
of auditors. Yet audit remains a 
vital component of making markets 
work, ensuring trust and integrity 
at all levels.”
Jonathan Riley

B U S I N E S S  R E V I E W
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How we are seen by the market
In May 2018 Grant Thornton UK took the strategic decision to 
cease tendering for statutory audits in the FTSE 350 market. 
This was a decision that caused ripples in the industry as it 
highlighted the existing systemic challenges of this market. 

However, competition and choice exists in other markets, 
notably the public sector and we will continue to speak 
out in a drive to see market dynamics change, to improve 
competition, transparency and choice in the larger private 
sector audit environment.

From a regulatory perspective, we place great emphasis on 
the feedback we receive from our regulators and work closely 
with them on their important work around audit quality and 
any historic investigations they are undertaking with reference 
to Grant Thornton. At the same time we are working hard to 
make changes to the way we do things.

In the last year we have further invested in streamlining our 
client-take on processes, implementing ongoing client due 
diligence, ensuring compliance with anti-money laundering 
legislation, further improving our compliance with our people’s 
independence globally, whilst building a strong and stable 
central ethics function and associated help desk

We were pleased to see the Financial Reporting Council’s 
(FRC) Annual Quality Review highlighted improvement over 
the result for 2017. This reflected the work we had done as 
regards ongoing learning for those associated with audit 
via our Business School as well as our Assurance businesses 
preparedness for the adoption of our new global accounting 
platform, LEAP, which is being implemented in the year ending 
30 June 2019 for our audit clients.

Our quality record for our public services sector work 
continues to be strong. We expect this to remain so as the 
oversight of quality in respect of our public sector work falls 
under the remit of the FRC.

How we see ourselves
In May 2018 a new leader for Quality and Reputation for 
the whole firm was appointed to the Strategic Leadership 
Team. This SLT-level appointment was made in order to 
reinforce the seriousness which the firm attaches to quality 
and safeguarding its reputation, as well as increasing senior 
leadership bandwidth. The functions of the previous Quality, 
Ethics and Excellence team, were subsumed into this new 
department although the role of the Ethics Partner continues 
as a separate function within this new unit.

On audit, our most recent National Audit Review, carried out 
between September 2017 and December 2017 saw 54 files 
reviewed and the results reflect the positive strides we have 
made in the eyes of our external regulator. With the advent 
of LEAP, quality reviews will continue to expand to cover these 
additional new aspects and methods we apply to our audit 
client base.

This has been the first full year of the adoption of our 
Code of Conduct as well as the introduction of service 
level agreements between those central units that support 
practitioners to help them meet the needs of their clients. 
Our ‘Beyond Compliance’ protocols have also demonstrated 
that whilst we can consider taking on a client who meets core 
compliance criteria, we actively consider whether a potential 
client sits comfortably with our purpose. As a result in the past 
12 months we have declined the opportunity to work with 
prospective clients who we feel did not meet these standards.

Finally, we continue to test the pulse of our people when it 
comes to quality to ensure it is embedded as part of the Grant 
Thornton cultural DNA. We ask them a number of questions, 
including to what extent they feel sufficiently equipped 
to do the tasks expected of them, their access to training 
and the provision of sufficient time to fulfil their functions. 
All of this contributes to whether a person believes they 
would recommend Grant Thornton as a place to work. Very 
pleasingly, this “employee net promoter score” has increased 
over the past year from 9 to 18.

In our Annual Report in 2017 we talked about how quality should be 
second nature. In the last year we have further invested in this core 
component on which our sustainable business is built.
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The year ahead
Whilst we have received positive messages, both externally 
and internally, on our progress on Quality over the last year, 
we will continue to ensure that we are not complacent.

In the coming year we will refresh the structure and remit of 
the Quality and Reputation department so that it is even more 
customer-focused. We will work with our people on the lessons 
learned from the recent Quality Pulse survey and continue 
to embed the disciplines of our Code of Conduct and our 
‘Beyond Compliance’ methodology with our people.

We will also continue to speak out on the how role of 
regulation should further build trust and integrity in financial 
markets, as well as helping to shape the debate around the 
future and purpose of audit and tax.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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Our financial 
performance

“2017/18 was a year when we continued to progress our firm’s 
strategy, making bold decisions on the shape and focus of 
our business. Whilst this reshaping has inevitably impacted 
our performance in this financial year, we believe that our 
newly aligned market focus will enable us to accelerate 
key growth areas of the business, driving sustainable and 
profitable growth in the future.”
Simon Jones

B U S I N E S S  R E V I E W
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The financial performance of the firm for the year ended 30 June 2018 reflects a year of 
continued transition. It was also a year with some disappointing results representative of an 
evolving and ambitious business transformation strategy which we are learning from.

Three years ago when we set out the firm’s long term strategy, 
we knew that there was much to do to reshape the business to 
create a more sustainable and profitable organisation for the 
long-term benefit of our key stakeholders. 

We knew that some sizeable parts of our business would no 
longer be core and that we would have to exit some other 
parts that did not reflect the shape of the business that we 
needed for the future. Additionally we knew that we would 
need to develop new capabilities and solutions to meet the 
needs of our clients - both current and those we wish to 
attract in the future. 

Revenues of £491m in 2017/18 represent a marginal year-on-
year fall, reflecting the effects of this reshaping.

It was also a year of positives. We have continued to see 
good growth in the areas of the business which are core to 
our growth strategy. For instance, the strongest growth has 
been in our mid-market business, where our strong brand 
contributed to a good year – in particular transactional 
activity has been very strong. 

This growth and the impact of our brand on this positions 
us well for future growth and demonstrates that focused 
investments in a differentiated brand translate into positive 
commercial outcomes. Moving forward we intend to build 
upon and harness our powerful brand awareness across the 
firm, translating it into consideration and growth. 

Corporate Finance Advisory and Transaction Advisory 
Services had record years, with combined revenues up 30% 
up on prior year. Other areas seeing strong levels of growth 
were Actuarial & Risk, Business Consulting and Business Risk 
Services with growth of 45%, 23% and 7% respectively. 

However, our overall 2017/18 financial performance was 
impacted by a series of one-off portfolio disposals which 
delivered revenue in 2016/17. In addition a number of 
contracts came to an end in 2016/17, and while this was 
planned, they were not replaced with similar work in 2017/18 
to allow us to meet all of the income they represented.

These included the cessation of three large public service 
contracts, with a combined revenue of £20m, six small 
portfolio disposals announced last year and decisions 
taken about clients we no longer wish to work with. All of 
these represented an active decision to exit and are entirely 
consistent with our long term strategic plan.

Revenues elsewhere have remained relatively flat. Audit and 
tax reflects the fact that we replaced some but not all of 
the revenue lost through our business reshaping. Similarly 
forensics reflects the replacement of a very significant 
assignment which represented 25% of prior year revenues. 
Recovery & Reorganisation showed a small reduction of 3%, 
reflecting the tailing off of the firm’s largest ever insolvency case.

Finally, during the year it became clear that whilst Geniac, 
our platform to support back office functions for small 
businesses, had established a strong and stable technology 
offering, it was not attracting new clients at a sufficient rate. 
As a result the firm took the difficult decision to cease its 
investment in Geniac.

So 2017/18 was a year when we continued to progress our 
firm’s strategy, making bold decisions on the shape and 
focus of the business moving forward. Whilst this reshaping 
has inevitably impacted our performance in this financial 
year, we believe that our newly aligned market focus will 
enable us to accelerate key growth areas of the business, 
driving sustainable and profitable growth in the future.

Going concern
The members believe that it is appropriate to prepare these 
financial statements on a going concern basis after reviewing 
the firm’s future anticipated trading results and cash flow 
forecasts, and the bank credit facilities which are in place until 
November 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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Management judgements and estimates
Material elements of the financial statements which are highly dependent 
upon management judgements and estimates are summarised as:

Defined benefit pension schemes - The reduction in pension deficit of £20.4m 
is driven by contributions of £14.4m and actuarial gains of £8.9m, being 
partially offset by interest costs of £2.4m and settlements resulting from the 
Enhanced Transfer Value (ETV) exercise of £0.5m.

Revenue recognition - In determining the amount of revenue to be recognised 
on incomplete contracts, it is necessary to estimate the stage of completion, 
the remaining time and cost to be incurred to complete them and the 
consideration that will be received. These estimates are made on a contract-
by-contract basis by professional staff with experience of the service being 
delivered and are subject to challenge by management.

Professional negligence claims provisions - Assumption that claim provisions 
will provide adequate cover for liabilities and that appropriate information has 
been used in order to establish the claim provisions.

Retirement annuities to partners - Estimations regarding assumed discount 
rate, RPI and mortality, where assumptions are in line with defined benefit 
pension scheme, but reflect shorter timescales.

Carrying value of goodwill - The carrying value of goodwill arising from the 
RSM Robson Rhodes LLP acquisition (in 2007) remained at £9.6m as at 30 
June 2018. The carrying value of goodwill on less significant acquisitions as at 
30 June 2018 is £3.5m.

Capital, treasury, liquidity
Liquidity risk is managed by periodically undertaking reviews of short, medium 
and long term funding requirements as well as continuously monitoring 
working capital usage. A significant part of the firm’s funding is from members’ 
capital, which is only repayable following retirement and borrowings which 
mainly comprise revolving credit facilities. Net debt increased by £11.4m to 
£54.5m as at 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017:£43.1m).

Statement of financial position analysis
Net assets (excluding amounts due to members) at the year-end were £25.6m, 
a £17.5m improvement from the previous year (£8.1m). The largest single 
factor in the change to the statement of financial position was once again the 
pension scheme liability which reduced by £20.4m to £73.1m.

Despite the reduction, the pension scheme liability remains a large item on 
the statement of financial position. We have continued our dialogue with the 
Trustees around the best way to balance meeting our employer covenant to 
the pension scheme whilst continuing to invest in the business for the long 
term. Following the conclusion of the triennial valuation at 30 June 2017, the 
Group will make annual deficit contributions to eliminate the funding shortfall 
by 31 December 2028 of £7m in the year ending 30 June 2019, rising to £7.3m 
from the year ending 30 June 2021 onwards. In addition, the Robson Rhodes 
Retirement Benefit Scheme was wound up in the year following the transfer of 
all the scheme assets and liabilities to an insurer in the year.

Whilst the disposal of Grant Thornton House to HS2 Limited has a limited net 
impact on the statement of financial position, the gross impacts on property, 
plant and equipment (£11.0m) and non-current borrowings (£11.5m) are 
significant to these line items. Further compensation on the disposal of 
this property is anticipated, but at the 30 June 2018 this is considered a 
contingent asset and so is not recognised.

Elsewhere in the statement of financial position, the increase in net borrowings 
has mainly been driven by additional payments into the pension fund as part 
of the ETV and investment in fixed assets around property and IT.

Our tax contribution
Our tax contribution for 2018 was £171.2m comprising taxes payable of 
£59.3m and taxes collected of £111.9m (2017: £174.0m, payable £62.3 and 
collected £111.7m)

Simon Jones 
Chief Financial Officer



Members’ Report

Designated members
The designated members during the year ended 30 June 2018, and those who have been appointed or resigned subsequently, are as follows:

D J Dunckley - CEO (from 1 December 2018) (appointed 1 May 2018)
S V Romanovitch - CEO (resigned 30 November 2018)
M R Byers - Strategic Leadership Team
K J Eddy - Strategic Leadership Team (resigned 30 November 2018)
M A Gomersall - Strategic Leadership Team (appointed 1 May 2018)
R K Hannah - Strategic Leadership Team (resigned 30 April 2018, appointed 1 December 2018)
S Hasenbos-Case - Strategic Leadership Team (resigned 30 April 2018)
S E Howard - Strategic Leadership Team (appointed 1 May 2018)
S J Jones - Strategic Leadership Team
D P Munton - Strategic Leadership Team (appointed 1 May 2018)
J C Riley - Strategic Leadership Team (appointed 1 May 2018)
N M Armstrong - Partnership Oversight Board (appointed 1 July 2018)
S B Bevan - Partnership Oversight Board
K L Campbell-Williams - Partnership Oversight Board
H Dale - Partnership Oversight Board
W E Hart - Partnership Oversight Board (appointed 1 July 2018)
T D James - Partnership Oversight Board (resigned 30 June 2018)
M A M Merali - Partnership Oversight Board (resigned 30 June 2018)
N Morrison - Partnership Oversight Board
N S Page - Partnership Oversight Board
P J Secrett - Partnership Oversight Board

The members present their report together with the financial statements of Grant Thornton UK LLP (the LLP) and its subsidiary entities (together the Group) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the LLP and the Group is the provision of audit, tax and advisory services in the UK.
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Members’ Report (continued)

Members' drawings and the subscription and repayment of members' capital
The LLP operates a drawings policy based on a prudent estimate of budgeted profits. Drawings are restricted to prudent levels, taking into account working capital performance, until the 
results for the year and individual members' allocations have been determined. The Membership Agreement provides a framework for further restriction of drawings under circumstances 
where the cash requirements of the business need to take priority over the cash needs of the members.

Members' capital requirements are determined from time to time by the CEO based on the short, medium and long term needs of the business. There are two levels of capital contribution 
depending on the member's number of profit sharing units although members may opt to contribute up to the higher level. Whilst the Membership Agreement provides power to the CEO to 
repay a member's capital before retirement, such discretion is only exercised in exceptional cases. 

Statement of members' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The members are responsible for preparing the Members' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 (the '2008 Regulations') require the members to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year. Under the law the members have elected to prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union (IFRSs), and solus entity financial statements under United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including 
Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework". The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the LLP 
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the members are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
• state whether applicable IFRSs for the consolidated financial statements, and UK Accounting Standards for the solus entity, have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the LLP or the Group will continue in business.
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Members’ Report (continued)

Statement of members' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements (continued)
The members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the LLP and enable them 
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 2008 Regulations. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group, and for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The members confirm that: 
• so far as each member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the LLP’s auditor is unaware
• the members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as members in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor 

is aware of that information.

The members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the LLP's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The members’ responsibilities set out above are discharged by the Designated Members on behalf of the members.

On behalf of the members

Simon Jones
Chief Financial Officer
7 December 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Grant Thornton UK LLP (the ‘group’) for the year ended 30 June 2018 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the group financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) 

(Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s ability to continue to adopt the going 

concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant 
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in 
the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)
Revenue recognition and the value of unbilled work

The risk:

The group’s accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition, together with the commentary on the related judgements and estimates, is set out in note 1 ‘Revenue analysis’ on page 45.  
Unbilled work is included on the statement of financial position as 'Amounts recoverable on contracts' within Trade and other receivables.  Under the group’s revenue recognition accounting 
policy, the amount of revenue recognised in a year will represent the fair value of the group’s entitlement to consideration in respect of professional services provided in that year. In 
determining the entitlement to consideration, engagement teams estimate both the proportion of each engagement that is complete at the year-end, and the total consideration expected to 
be received under the engagement. 

Some engagements, such as those that are longer term or that have complex contractual criteria determining entitlement to revenue, have a higher degree of uncertainty over the level of 
billable fees and/or engagement costs, and hence over profitability. The Recovery & Reorganisation (R&R) practice has a higher concentration of such contracts and accounts for 53% (2017: 
56%) of Amounts recoverable on contracts at the year end. There is a risk that the complex and bespoke revenue recognition policies adopted for specialist areas of the business are not in 
accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The level of uncertainty is also considered to be higher in the early stages of a long term engagement, and estimated profits on certain longer term engagements are discounted, based on 
stage of completion, to reflect this uncertainty. 

Reflecting the judgmental nature of the assessments required by engagement teams and the complex nature of some contractual arrangements, we have identified revenue recognition and 
the associated value of unbilled work, in particular in relation to longer term and more complex engagements, as a significant risk that requires special audit consideration. 

Our response:

Our audit procedures over revenue recognition and unbilled work included general procedures on the methodology adopted and related control environment and control procedures, and 
substantive testing on a sample of engagements. 

General procedures included, but were not limited to:
• considering the appropriateness of the methodology adopted, including the application of early-stage discounting of profit recognition on certain longer term engagements;
• testing the integrity of revenue recognition models utilised for complex engagements, such as those in the R&R practice; and
• assessing the related internal control environment, including testing certain controls that we considered to be key in the determination of revenue to be recognised;.

Substantive sampling procedures included, but were not limited to:
• selection of a sample of engagements, focusing on but not limited to longer term and more complex engagements and for each sample engagement:;
• assessing the right to consideration by reference to contractual terms; and
• discussing and challenging the assumptions and estimates applied by engagement teams in determining the level of revenue recognised.

Our findings:

We concluded that the methodology and models used in estimating the level of revenue and the valuation of unbilled work were appropriate.  No significant deficiencies in the operation of 
related controls were detected that required us to revise the nature and/or scope of planned audit procedures, and we found no material misstatements arising from our testing.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we consider that the estimates applied result in a consistent and appropriate level of revenue and unbilled work recognised in the financial statements.

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  31  



Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)
Provisions for professional negligence claims and regulatory proceedings

The risk:

The group’s accounting policy in respect of provisions for professional negligence claims and regulatory proceedings is set out in note 6 ‘Provisions’ on page 55 and the commentary on the 
related judgements and estimates is set out on page 54. 

The group makes a provision on the statement of financial position for regulatory matters and for uninsured and self-insured costs for settling negligence claims as 'Claims provisions' within 
'Provisions', as set out in note 6 ‘Provisions’ on page 54. The determination of provisions required can be highly judgmental. Generally, the level of provision in respect of claims considered 
to have merit is limited to the insurance excess plus any self-insured amount. The level of provision for regulatory matters is determined through assessment on a case by case basis.

A claim with a value exceeding the group’s insurance cover, or a claim that is not covered by the group’s insurance, could require an additional and potentially significant provision to be 
made, which in turn, could impact the ability of the group to continue as a going concern. We have therefore identified the provisioning for professional claims and regulatory matters as a 
significant risk requiring special audit consideration.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to:
• confirming the nature and level of insurance in place by reference to insurance certification, and considering the financial strength of the insurance providers;
• reviewing the nature and level of insurance provision in place and considering the provision methodology;
• assessing the professional claim notification procedures;
• consideration of all significant ongoing regulatory matters and a sample of claims in progress, reviewing publicly available information and information held in-house, and challenging the 

group’s legal counsel on the level of provision made; and
• considering the outturn of regulatory matters and claims settled during the year.

Our findings:

We found the nature and level of insurance held to be consistent with the provision methodology. We did not identify any significant deficiencies in the operation of the professional claim 
notification procedures.

Based on our audit work, we consider the judgements made by management in determining the provision for claims and regulatory proceedings to be reasonable in light of the evidence 
available at the date of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)
Defined benefit pension schemes and partners’ annuities

The risk:

The group’s accounting policy in respect of defined benefit pension schemes is set out in note A4 ‘Pensions’ on page 90 and the commentary on the related judgements and estimates set 
out in note 5 ‘Pensions’ on page 52.  The group’s accounting policy in respect of partners’ annuities is set out in note 6 ‘Provisions’ on page 55 and the commentary on the related 
judgements and estimates is set out on page 54.

The pension arrangements include two defined benefit schemes.  The liabilities of the Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefits Scheme were bought out during the year.  A significant provision 
in respect of the Grant Thornton Pension Fund has been included on the consolidated statement of financial position as 'Pension and other employee obligations'.  The measurement of the 
pension scheme liabilities is performed by Grant Thornton’s internal actuarial team, and is subject to complex assumptions that involve significant judgement.  Details of the assumptions 
used and the calculation of the liabilities are included in note A4 ‘Pensions’ on page 90.

The group’s obligations under partners’ annuity arrangements also give rise to a significant provision which is included on the consolidated statement of financial position as 'Former 
members’ annuities' within 'Provisions for liabilities', as set out in note 6 ‘Provisions’ on page 54. The calculation of the liability in respect of these obligations is performed by Grant Thornton’s 
internal actuarial team and is subject to complex assumptions that involve significant judgement.

We have therefore identified the valuation of liabilities in respect of the defined benefit pension schemes and the partners’ annuity arrangements as a significant risk requiring special audit 
consideration.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included, but were not restricted to:
• reviewing documentation to support the buy-out of the liabilities of the Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefits Scheme;
• assessing the qualification and objectivity of the Grant Thornton internal actuarial team, and the scope of their work;
• in conjunction with our internal actuarial specialists, considering the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and challenging the Grant Thornton actuarial team on the 

appropriateness of the valuation assumptions; and
• reviewing the associated financial statement disclosures in the context of the requirements of IAS 19 and best practice.

Our findings:

Based on our audit procedures, we found the actuarial assumptions to be both balanced and consistent with the expectations of our internal actuarial specialists when considered individually 
and when taken as a suite of assumptions.  No material exceptions were noted from our testing of scheme assets.  We consider that the related disclosures are appropriate and adequately 
disclose the significant degree of sensitivity of the scheme liabilities to the actuarial assumptions. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing our audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the financial statements, and in forming our audit opinion. The 
level of materiality we set is based on our assessment of the magnitude of misstatements that, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have influence on the economic 
decisions of the users of the financial statements.

We establish materiality by reference to the profit before members’ remuneration and profit shares, which we consider to be one of the principal considerations of the members in assessing 
the financial performance of the group.  We determined materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole to be £6.9m (2017: £7.8m), representing approximately 10% of the 
profit before members’ remuneration and profit shares.  Performance materiality for the group was determined to be £5.1m (2017: £5.8m).  This is set to reduce to an appropriately low level 
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements in the financial statements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.  Although the group 
comprises a number of legal entities, and materiality for individual entity-level statutory audits has been determined at a level below that for the group, we consider that the group comprises 
one significant business component.

We agreed with the Risk & Audit Committee that we would report to that committee all identified corrected and uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.2m (2017: £0.2m) (representing 
3% of financial statement materiality) together with differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our audit involved obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and effort, are 
discussed under “Key audit matters” within this report.

Our audit scope included an audit of the group financial statements of Grant Thornton UK LLP. All audit work on subsidiary undertakings undertaken for the purposes of our group audit 
opinion was performed by the group audit team at the group’s main finance centre in Northampton.

Other information
The members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our 
opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the group, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
• the group’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Members
As explained more fully in the Statement of members’ responsibilities set out on page 28, the members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  35  



Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)

Use of the audit report
This report is made solely to the group’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as applied by regulations 39 and 40 of the Limited Liability 
Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the group’s members those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
group and the group’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

William Neale Bussey
(Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Tower Bridge House
St Katharine’s Way
London
E1W 1DD

7 December 2018
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Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Revenue 1 490,816 499,875

Client expenses and disbursements (30,338) (32,920)

Net revenue 460,478 466,955

Other income 15 847 1,267

Operating expenses A1 (385,937) (388,087)

Operating profit 75,388 80,135

Share of profit from equity accounted investments 11 - 2,662

Finance costs 21 (4,970) (6,240)

Finance income 21 637 1,391

Profit/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets 15 519 (110)

Other financial items 15 62 50

Profit before tax and members’ remuneration 71,636 77,888

Tax expense 7 (1,963) (2,588)

Profit for the year from continuing operations before members’ remuneration 69,673 75,300

Members' remuneration charged as an expense 22 (6,572) (5,995)

Profit for the year available for discretionary division among members 63,101 69,305

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Review of Performance: 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income

Revenues of £491m in 2017/18 represent a 
marginal year-on-year fall, reflecting the effects 
of reshaping the business to our future 
business requirements.

Operating expenses reduced despite the 
inclusion of a £2.1m impairment relating to the 
Geniac Platform.

Underlying operating profit margin, after 
adjusting for the one-off impairment charge 
relating to Geniac, is marginally lower at 15.8% 
(2017: 16.0%).
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Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Profit for the year available for discretionary division among members 63,101 69,305

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains on the defined benefit obligation A4 8,928 9,934

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

 current year (losses)/gains (5) 4

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (44) 71

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,879 10,009

Total comprehensive income for the year 71,980 79,314

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Review of position: 

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension 
schemes results from changes in demographic 
assumptions (£2.0m), returns on assets 
(£7.1m) and financial assumptions (£0.5m), 
which were partially offset by changes in 
experience re-measurement (£0.7m).
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Consolidated statement of financial 
position Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

ASSETS Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets

Goodwill 9 13,101 13,101

Other intangible assets 12 5,617 7,845

Property, plant and equipment 13 19,099 27,206

Investments accounted for using the equity method 11 9,078 12,682

Other long term financial assets A2 8,900 7,304

Total non-current assets 55,795 68,138

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 2 225,361 202,986

Derivative financial instruments A2 - 127

Cash and cash equivalents 16 13,846 24,198

Total current assets 239,207 227,311

Total assets 295,002 295,449

Review of position: 

Consolidated statement of financial position

Other intangible assets have reduced following 
the impairment of the Geniac platform, offset 
by continued investment in our tools, systems 
and processes to deliver quality and 
excellence.

Reduction in property, plant and equipment 
reflects the disposal of Grant Thornton House 
as part of the HS2 development, which is 
partially offset by the continued investment in 
the ongoing property portfolio.

Increase in trade and other receivables is due 
to increased invoicing in the final quarter of the 
year.

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Members' other interests – other reserves classified as equity 22 (36,199) (47,348)

Translation reserve 22 1,944 1,988

Revaluation reserve 22 (323) (318)

Total equity (34,578) (45,678)
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Equity and liabilities (continued) Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Pensions 5 73,065 93,464

Borrowings 19 276 11,630

Provisions 6 36,264 37,008

109,605 142,102

Current liabilities

Loans and other debts due to members within one year

Members' capital classified as a liability 22 44,275 44,150

Other amounts 22 15,884 9,655

60,159 53,805

Other current liabilities

Borrowings 19 68,080 55,635

Trade and other payables 3 90,490 88,656

Derivative financial instruments A3 - 77

Current tax liabilities 1,246 852

219,975 199,025

Total liabilities 329,580 341,127

Total equity and liabilities 295,002 295,449

Consolidated statement of financial 
position Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Review of position: 

Consolidated statement of financial position

The most significant item continues to be the 
pension scheme liability which has reduced in 
the year as a result of active management of 
liabilities and assets within the scheme. We 
remain confident that the liability is being 
effectively managed over a suitable timescale.

The reduction in non-current borrowings is due 
to the disposal of the finance lease obligation 
associated with Grant Thornton House, exited 
as part of the HS2 development.

Increase in current borrowings is driven by 
additional payments into the pension fund as 
part of the Enhanced Transfer Value (ETV) 
exercise and investment in fixed assets which 
includes property and IT. 

The financial statements were approved by the Designated Members and authorised for issue on 7 December 2018.

David Dunckley Simon Jones
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Registered no: OC307742

Total members’ 
interests

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Loans and other debts 
due to members within 
one year 60,159 53,805

Members' other 
interests (34,578) (45,678)

Net assets (excluding 
amounts due to 
members) 25,581 8,127

Amounts due from 
members (9,677) (10,981)

Pension scheme  
liability 73,065 93,464

Total excluding pension 
scheme liability 88,969 90,610
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Revaluation reserve
£’000

Translation reserve
£’000

Other reserves
£’000

Total equity
£’000

Balance at 1 July 2017 (318) 1,988 (47,348) (45,678)

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year - - (61,441) (61,441)

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members - - 561 561

Transactions with members - - (60,880) (60,880)

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division among members - - 63,101 63,101

Other comprehensive income (5) (44) 8,928 8,879

Total comprehensive income for the year (5) (44) 72,029 71,980

Balance at 30 June 2018 (323) 1,944 (36,199) (34,578)

Revaluation reserve
£’000

Translation reserve
£’000

Other reserves
£’000

Total equity
£’000

Balance at 1 July 2016 (322) 1,917 (71,701) (70,106)

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year - - (55,470) (55,470)

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members - - 584 584

Transactions with members - - (54,886) (54,886)

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division among members - - 69,305 69,305

Other comprehensive income 4 71 9,934 10,009

Total comprehensive income for the year 4 71 79,239 79,314

Balance at 30 June 2017 (318) 1,988 (47,348) (45,678)

Consolidated statement of changes in 
equity Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
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Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Operating activities

Profit for the year available for discretionary division among members 63,101 69,305

Members' remuneration charged as an expense 6,572 5,995

Taxation 1,963 2,588

Non-cash adjustments 8 12,721 8,007

Contributions to defined benefit plans (14,405) (11,113)

Net changes in working capital 8 (20,350) (8,557)

Net cash from operations 49,602 66,225

Taxes paid (1,765) (3,506)

Net cash from operating activities 47,837 62,719

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,915) (3,690)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,011 666

Purchase of other intangible assets (2,229) (4,914)

Proceeds from investments accounted for using the equity method 3,625 -

Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity method (22) -

Purchase of investments (8,905) (7,300)

Proceeds from disposal of investments 7,304 7,903

Interest received 637 1,391

Net cash used in investing activities (5,494) (5,944)

Consolidated statement of cash flows
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Review of major changes: 

Consolidated statement of cash flows

The operating profit to net cash from 
operations conversion percentage has 
reduced to 78.6% from 95.6% due to the 
increase in contributions to the defined benefit 
plans.

The increase in contributions to the defined 
benefit plans represent additional payments 
into the pension fund as part of the ETV 
exercise.

Increase in other intangible assets starts to 
show the larger, longer term investments, 
including the investment in IT and new service 
offerings.
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Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 67,900 67,264

Repayment of borrowings (55,356) (40,473)

Interest paid (2,036) (2,720)

Payments on behalf of members (59,048) (61,254)

Capital contribution by members 4,000 5,000

Annuity payments to former partners 17 (2,162) (2,406)

Repayments to former members 17 (5,968) (9,516)

Net cash used in financing activities (52,670) (44,105)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (10,327) 12,670

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 24,198 11,404

Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents (25) 124

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 13,846 24,198

Consolidated statement of cash flows
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Financing activates:

Borrowings increased in the year, supporting 
investment in the IT systems, property, new 
service offerings and quality together with 
payments in relation to the pension schemes.

The LLP has bank facilities of £111m 
comprising a revolving credit facility in place 
until November 2023.
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Operating activities notes and
accounting policies 
Operating activities are those that derive from the core of our business and are not directly 
affected by decisions on how we manage our investments or financing. These largely 
determine the underlying activity of the business. As such, in this section we include 
Operating Notes:

1. Revenue analysis 

2. Trade and other receivables

3. Trade and other payables

4. Employee remuneration – Employee benefits expense

5. Pensions

6. Provisions

7. Income taxes

8. Operating cash flow: Adjustments in arriving at operating cash flows

Operating highlights

The operating highlights in the year:

Revenues of £491m in 2017/18 represent a marginal year-on-year fall, reflecting the 
effects of reshaping the business to our future business requirements.

Whilst the firm’s net revenue fell by £6.5m, revenue in the final quarter was greater than in 
the previous year, resulting in an increase in trade receivables.

The reduction in pension deficit of £20.4m resulted from an increase in scheme assets 
(after removing the effect of settlements) of  £17.7m and a reduction in plan liabilities (after 
removing the effect of settlements) of £3.2m, this reduction was offset by a net settlement 
of £0.5m from the ETV exercise.

The Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefit Scheme was wound up in the year.
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1. Revenue analysis 

Revenue recognition accounting policy
All of our revenue streams involve the rendering of services.  Revenue is only recognised 
once the outcome of these transactions can be estimated reliably.  This is when the stage of 
completion of the contract, the consideration to be received and the costs to be incurred to 
complete the contract can be measured reliably, and it is probable that consideration will be 
received. The amount of revenue recognised is measured by reference to the stage of 
completion of the contract and the estimated fair value of the consideration to be received. 
This consideration represents amounts chargeable to clients, including expenses and 
disbursements, but excluding value added tax.

The Group generates revenues from a wide variety of contracts for the provision of audit, tax 
and advisory services, and often enters into sales transactions involving a range of the 
Group's services. The Group applies the revenue recognition criteria set out above to each 
separately identifiable component of the sales transaction. The consideration received from 
these multiple-component transactions is allocated to each separately identifiable 
component in proportion to that service’s relative fair value.

Revenue in respect of conditional or contingent fee engagements, which is over and above 
any agreed minimum fee, is recognised when the contingent event occurs where the event is 
outside the control of the Group or there exists sufficient historic evidence to enable 
estimating the probability of the event occurring.

Revenue not invoiced to clients is included in amounts recoverable on contracts, within trade 
and other receivables. Payments on account in excess of the relevant amount of revenue 
are included in excess payments received on account within trade and other payables.

Full provision is made for losses on contracts in the year in which the loss is first foreseen. 
These losses are categorised as 'Provisions for foreseeable losses' within trade and other 
payables.

At a glance:

Revenue in the year:

Revenues of £491m in 2017/18 represent a marginal year-on-year fall, reflecting the 
effects of reshaping the business to reflect our future business requirements.

It was also a year of positives.  We have continued to see good growth in the areas of the 
business which are core to our growth strategy.  For instance, the strongest growth has 
been in our mid-market business, where our strong brand credentials contributed to a 
good year – in particular transactional activity has been very strong.

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

Revenue recognition

In determining the amount of revenue to be recognised on incomplete contracts, it is 
necessary to estimate the stage of completion, the remaining time and costs to be incurred 
to complete them and the consideration that is expected to be received. These estimates 
are made on a contract-by-contract basis by engagement teams with experience of the 
service being delivered and are subject to review and challenge by management. 
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1. Revenue analysis (continued)

Future developments At a glance:

Revenue analysis: Analysis by business class

Corporate finance has grown in all locations with particularly strong growth in London and 
Scotland. 

The reduction in other advisory is due to the conclusion of a long standing contract, whilst 
new growth areas of cyber and digital forensics are starting to be developed.

Standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Application For annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Earlier application is permitted. It is expected to be 
adopted for the accounts for the year ending 30 June 
2019.

Summary IFRS 15 presents new requirements for the recognition of 
revenue.

Anticipated 
impact Low

Qualification & 
Project 
management

The assessment of the most significant revenue streams 
(relating to circa 80% of revenue) has been completed and 
no material changes are considered required to revenue 
following the implementation of IFRS 15.
The transition and disclosure requirements of IFRS 15 will 
be considered during the forthcoming year.
In addition, training is being provided to members of the 
finance team to enable them to assess the most 
appropriate method of calculating variable consideration 
and accounting for variations in contracts.
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2. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

Trade and other receivables accounting policy
Our most significant financial assets are considered to be trade and other receivables and 
amounts recoverable on contracts. Trade receivables are recognised when a service has 
been provided and an invoice has been issued. These are initially recorded at the fair value 
of consideration receivable representing the amount we expect to be paid for our service as 
agreed with the client. If a service has been provided but not invoiced, an asset “Amounts 
recoverable on contracts” is recognised which is estimated by reference to the stage of 
completion of the contract and the amount we expect to bill for the work. 

An impairment is recognised when a customer fails to pay in accordance with the terms of 
the engagement or there is other objective evidence that the customer will be unable to pay.  
Where an impairment has been identified, these are recorded in an allowance account for 
credit losses and deducted from the trade receivables balance. The net carrying value of 
trade receivables, which shows trade receivables after these provisions for impairment, is 
considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

At a glance:

Trade and other receivables

The increase in trade receivables is primarily the result of an increase in the level of 
billings in the final quarter of the financial year.

The most significant movement in prepayments is an increase in the level of prepaid 
software licences.

Due < 1 year
2018

£’000
2017

£’000

Trade receivables, gross 116,192 107,457

Allowance for credit losses (4,922) (4,760)

Trade receivables, net 111,270 102,697

Amounts recoverable on contracts 58,561 54,328

Amounts due from members 9,677 10,981

Financial assets 179,508 168,006

Other receivables 19,437 17,633

Prepayments 22,064 13,091

Non-financial assets 41,501 30,724

221,009 198,730

Due > 1 year
2018

£’000
2017

£’000

Financial assets - fully and compulsory convertible 
debentures

3,786 3,734

Non-financial assets - prepayments 566 522

4,352 4,256

Total trade and other receivables 225,361 202,986
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2. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Credit risk analysis
Credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a customer failing to make 
payments that are contractually due. In the current low interest rate environment, the 
principal financial risk associated with trade receivables is credit risk.

The Group regularly monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified 
either individually or collectively, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. 
Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and 
other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group's policy is to deal only with 
creditworthy counterparties. 

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit 
risk from exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar 
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various 
industries and geographical areas, which reduces any potential risk concentrations. 

All of the Group's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of 
impairment. The Group has a policy of providing for all debts to the extent that management 
think they cannot collect all amounts due. The provision is also determined by reference to 
past default experience. Based on historical information about customer default rates, 
management consider the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or 
impaired to be good. 

At 30 June the Group has certain trade receivables that have not been settled by the 
contractual due date, but are not considered to be impaired as management have reason to 
believe that they will be settled in full. The amounts receivable at 30 June, analysed by the 
length of time past due, are:
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2. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Where impairments have been recognised the movements in the allowance account for such 
credit losses is presented below:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Balance 1 July 4,760 5,387

Impairment loss 879 1,164

Amounts written off (717) (1,791)

Balance 30 June 4,922 4,760

The proportion of revenue that has been converted into cash, trade receivables and amounts  
recoverable on contracts is presented below
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22.6% 20.5%
11.9% 10.9%
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3. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables consist of the following:

Trade and other payables accounting policy
Trade payables are recognised when a good or service has been received or supplied and 
has been formally invoiced but has not been paid. The liability is recorded at the fair value of 
consideration payable. If a good or service has been supplied but not been paid, invoiced or 
formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees, an accrual is 
recognised. 

Excess payments received on account are recognised where a client has been invoiced but 
the service has not yet been supplied, or only partially supplied. It is measured as the 
difference between the amount due from the client and the revenue recognised for any 
element of the service that has been delivered.

At a glance:

Trade and other payables

Excess payments received on account have continued to reduce in the year, continuing 
the trend of the last 5 years.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Excess payments received on account 14,885 19,025

Trade payables 5,284 5,675

Social security and other taxes 16,239 14,983

Other creditors 3,800 4,463

Accruals and deferred income 45,690 40,514

Provisions for foreseeable losses 1,774 1,839

Amounts due to former members 2,818 2,157

Total payables 90,490 88,656
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4. Employee remuneration – Employee 
benefits expense

Expenses recognised for employee benefits are analysed below:

Employee numbers

The average number of full time equivalent members and employees during the year, all of 
whom were engaged in the Group's principal activity, were as follows:

At a glance:

Employee Remuneration

Our people are the primary driver of our operating performance. This has been discussed 
further in the Business Review – Our culture.

In offering rewards we utilise benchmarking tools to ensure they are competitive. This is in 
light of our investment in people and transparency in our reward. Average salaries in Grant 
Thornton have increased by an average of 0.2% per person in the year (2017: 1.8%).

We have also restructured our organisation as a Shared Enterprise. We believe this will 
have the following benefits:

• Enable all our people to share ideas to drive our performance forward; sharing 
ideas.

• Enable all our people to take ownership for driving these ideas forward; sharing 
responsibility.

• Invest our improved performance with all our people; sharing reward.

As a responsible business we ensure our employees earn a wage which is at least enough 
to live on and goes further than the Government minimum.  We are currently a London 
Living Wage Foundation accredited employer. In May 2018 we voluntarily introduced a 
minimum rate of pay for our people which exceeds the Living Wage Foundation minimum 
pay requirements for not just London, but the entire UK. This means we agree to pay all 
directly paid Grant Thornton people and third party contractors at least the rates set by 
Living Wage Foundation. We were formally accredited by the Living Wage Foundation for 
the entire UK in November 2018.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Wages and salaries 202,816 202,352

Social security costs 23,665 23,366

Pensions – defined contribution plans 21,723 22,226

248,204 247,944

2018 2017

Members (of whom 20 are entitled to a fixed 
amount of profit share - 2017: 16)

187 185

Fee earning employees 3,255 3,298

Non fee earners 1,155 1,106

4,597 4,589

Short-term employee benefits accounting policy
Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in 
pensions (note 5), measured at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement. 
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5. Pensions

The liabilities recognised for pensions and other employee remuneration are:

* Included within accruals and deferred income in trade and other payables in note 3.

Holiday pay accounting policy
The current portion of these liabilities arise mainly from accrued holiday entitlement at the 
reporting date and are expected to be settled in the next 12 months.

Pension ageing
As none of the employees are eligible for early settlement of pension arrangements, the 
remaining element of pension obligations for defined benefit plans is considered non-current. 
The non-current portion of the defined benefit liability is presented net of plan assets.

Pension post balance sheet event – GMP equalisation
Following the settlement of the Lloyds Bank GMP equalisation case on 26 October 2018, the 
pension trustees have been considering the impact for the Grant Thornton Pension Fund. 
Whilst the exact impact is still being evaluated, it is expected that GMP equalisation will 
increase scheme liabilities by around 0.5% (£1.9m based 30 June 2018 liabilities). This is 
considered to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event as it introduces a new liability 
after the balance sheet date.

At a glance:

Pensions

The Group operated two defined benefit pension plans during the year for the benefit of 
certain employees, the Grant Thornton Pensions Fund and the Robson Rhodes 
Retirement Benefit Scheme. Both schemes are closed to new employees, and the Grant 
Thornton Pension Fund was closed to further benefit accrual with effect from 31 October 
2014. The Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefit Scheme was wound up in the year 
following the transfer of all the scheme assets and liabilities to an insurer. Details of the 
plans have been provided in the extended notes (note A4).

The reduction in pension deficit of £20.4m is driven by contributions of £14.4m and 
actuarial gains of £8.9m, being partially offset by interest costs of £2.4m and a settlement 
loss resulting from the ETV exercise of £0.5m.

The settlement loss arose from 142 (2017: 46) pension scheme members of the Grant 
Thornton Pensions Fund exercising their right under the ETV offer made in the year ended 
30 June 2017.

The duration of the Grant Thornton Pension Fund liabilities is around 16 years (2017: 17 
years).

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group takes professional advice from the schemes actuaries when estimating the 
assumptions used to value the Group’s  obligations under the schemes. Key assumptions 
include those in relation to the discount rate to be applied to liabilities as well as those in 
relation to mortality.

The last triennial valuation of the pension scheme was completed  at 30 June 2017 and 
resulted in the scheme actuary making no significant changes to the mortality assumptions 
or tables. The next triennial valuation of the pension scheme will be at 30 June 2020.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current:

Defined benefit liability (net) 73,065 93,464

Former members annuities (note 6) 18,193 21,210

91,258 114,674

Current:

Other short term employee obligations * 6,100 5,760
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5. Pensions (continued)

Defined benefit pensions testing sensitivity
Comparatively small changes in the assumptions used for measuring the defined benefit 
obligations for the continuing plan may have a significant effect on the Group’s income 
statement and statement of financial position. 

The following graph shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit deficit to reasonably possible 
changes in the key assumptions underlying the valuation, with all other assumptions 
remaining unchanged.

As shown, the estimate of value of the defined benefit pension liability is particularly 
sensitive to the interest rate. If the interest rate used is increased by 1%, liabilities would be 
reduced by £58m.

Defined benefit pensions future funding obligations
The ongoing funding of the defined benefit pension scheme is based on the actuarial 
valuation of £99.7m at 30 June 2017, rather than the current IAS accounting deficit of 
£73.1m which has more stringent assumptions applied to it.

Following the conclusion of the triennial valuation at 30 June 2017, the Group will 
make annual deficit contributions to eliminate the funding shortfall by 31 December 
2028 (as shown in note 18) of £7m in the year ending 30 June 2019, rising to £7.3m 
from the year ending 30 June 2021 onwards.

The expected employer contributions to the scheme, including the salary sacrifice 
component, in the year commencing 1 July 2018 are expected to be £7.0m (1 July 
2017: £6.1m).
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6. Provisions

Provisions movements in the year

Members’ annuities

The provision for former members' annuities is expected to be utilised as follows:

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

All provisions are considered non-current.

Professional negligence claims provisions

Provisions for professional negligence claims are inherently difficult to estimate. In making 
a provision management make estimates by reference to: 

• The number of claims notified at the period end. In establishing this number, the head 
of legal canvases the partner and director population quarterly to establish whether any 
new claims have been notified or are expected. 

• An estimate of the likely outflow. This is based on an assessment of the merits of the 
claim and past experience.

• The time value of money based on the yield of a similar duration liability. 

The firm insures itself against professional negligence claims through policies underwritten 
by its captive insurance subsidiary and by the external insurance market. All claims are 
subject to a policy excess (also referred to as a self-insured deductible amount) which is 
borne by the LLP.

Claim
provision

£’000

Property
provision

£’000

Former
members’
annuities

£’000
Total
£’000

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 July 2017 12,273 3,525 21,210 37,008

New annuity obligations - - 602 602

Amortisation of discount - 105 373 478

Settlement of obligations during year (3,473) (828) (2,723) (7,024)

Change in assumptions and 
experience losses

3,421 - (1,269) 2,152

Released to profit and loss account (190) (594) - (784)

Provided during the year 1,662 2,170 - 3,832

Balance at 30 June 2018 13,693 4,378 18,193 36,264

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

In less than one year 2,428 2,612

After one and within five years 6,402 7,218

After five and within ten years 4,751 5,515

After ten and within twenty-five years 4,449 5,582

In more than twenty-five years 163 283

18,193 21,210

Retirement annuities to partners

The firm has an obligation to former members in the form of retirement annuities.

This obligation must be estimated as the ultimate cash flow depends on various variables, 
principally interest rates and mortality. We use our internal actuarial specialist to help 
estimate the obligation. 
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6. Provisions (continued)

Provisions accounting policy
Recognition and measurement

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required 
from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the 
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of 
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present 
values, where the time value of money is material. 

No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present 
obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the 
outflow of resources is remote.

Any reimbursement that the Group is virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect 
to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the 
amount of the related provision. 

Provisions recognised at acquisition date in a business combination are included in 
additions.

Claim provisions - Provisions for claims are in respect of the estimated amounts for 
commercial settlements and professional indemnity claims. The nature of the claims 
provisions are such that the timing of the utilisation of those provisions is inherently difficult 
to predict. 

Property provisions – Property provisions are in respect of dilapidations and surplus 
properties. The nature of the property provisions are such that the timing of the utilisation of 
those provisions is inherently difficult to predict. 

Retirement benefits of former members and partners of the predecessor firm

The Group (and LLP members) has a contractual obligation to make payments to certain 
former partners and certain partners of the predecessor partnership following their 
retirement. The Group’s obligations in respect of these future payments are referred to as 
‘annuities’ for which further detail is provided below.  

The obligation for all annuities remains with the Group and the financial statements include 
obligations for retirement annuities payable in the future to retired members. The obligation 
has been discounted to its net present value.

The obligation for annuities to former members include elements that are dependent on the 
life expectancy of the former members (mortality rates are assumed to follow the 110% 
S2PA Light table). The annuity provision has been actuarially calculated using a discount 
rate of 2.2% (2017: 1.8%) based on Government bonds and estimates of the expected 
payment period covered by the annuities. 

New obligations granted to members on their retirement and changes in estimates and 
assumptions in respect of existing obligations, together with the unwinding of the discount, 
are recognised in profit and loss. 
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7. Income taxes

Grant Thornton UK LLP as a Limited Liability Partnership is not subject to corporation tax on 
the majority of its profits. Tax arises through the income tax payable on the LLP profits being 
the personal liability of the members, although payment of such liabilities is administered by 
the LLP on behalf of the members.

Taxation arises within the subsidiary undertakings of the Group and represents:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Profits on ordinary activities before tax 71,636 77,888

(Profits)/losses of LLP's not subject to
corporation tax

(53,500) (59,855)

18,136 18,033

Domestic tax rate 19.00% 19.75%

Expected tax expense 3,446 3,562

Profits taxed at zero percent or exempt from tax (330) (365)

Pension cost charge less than pension cost relief (2,180) (1,322)

Losses in subsidiary undertakings not relieved 1,439 555

(Under)/over provision from earlier years (412) 158

Total tax expense 1,963 2,588

Deferred tax expense, recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income

- -

Accounting policy
Recognition and measurement

In relation to the income tax payable by the members of Grant Thornton UK LLP, neither 
partnership taxation nor related deferred taxation are accounted for in the financial 
statements. Sums set aside in respect of members' tax obligations are included in the 
statement of financial position within loans and other debts due to members or set against 
amounts due from members as appropriate. 

Amounts identified as income taxation in these financial statements relate to corporate 
subsidiaries.

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax 
not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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7. Income taxes (continued)

Our tax contribution
2018

£’000
2017

£’000

Taxes paid or payable

Estimated partner tax and NIC payable on current 
year profits

26,709 30,038

Employers NIC 22,621 21,560

Business rates 5,919 5,558

Corporation tax on subsidiary company profits 1,963 2,588

PAYE and NIC on benefits in kind, irrecoverable 
input VAT and stamp duty

2,105 2,511

59,317 62,255

Taxes collected

Net VAT 54,361 54,281

PAYE and employees NIC 57,485 57,401

111,846 111,682

Total tax contribution 171,163 173,937

At a glance:

Tax contribution

The largest tax borne by the members of the firm is on the profits of the LLP. Income tax 
and National Insurance contributions arising on the profits for the year ended 30 June 
2018 is estimated to be £26.7m (2017: £30.0m). These profits will be taxed on each 
member at approximately 40% (2017: 40%) on the first £150,000 of their share and at 
45% (2017: 45%) for amounts above this.

The effective tax rate across all the members is 42.5% (2017: 42.5%); and based on 
distributable profits the effective tax rate to members is 46.0% (2017: 46.7%), both include 
National Insurance contributions of around 2%.

30,038

21,560

5,558
2,588 2,511

2017 taxes paid or payable
£'000

26,709

22,621

5,919

1,963 2,105

2018 taxes paid or payable
£'000

Estimated partner tax and NIC payable on current year profits
Employers NIC
Business rates
Corporation tax on subsidiary company profits
PAYE and NIC on benefits in kind, irrecoverable input VAT and stamp duty
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8. Operating cash flow: Adjustments in 
arriving at operating cash flows
The following adjustments have been made to profit before tax to arrive at operating 
cash flow:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Net changes in working capital

Change in trade and other receivables (23,518) 21,766

Change in trade and other payables 1,189 (31,038)

Change in provisions 1,979 715

Total changes in working capital (20,350) (8,557)

Non-cash adjustments

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-
financial assets

8,856 5,887

Interest (636) (1,391)

Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets and 
liabilities recognised in profit or loss

50 (177)

Interest expense 2,036 2,720

(Gain)/loss on disposal of non-financial assets (519) 110

Net interest on defined benefit liability 2,934 3,520

Result from equity accounted investments - (2,662)

Total non-cash adjustments 12,721 8,007

At a glance:

The increase in working capital is principally driven by the increased level of billings in the 
final quarter of the financial year (£7.9m increase in trade receivables less than 3 months 
past due date compared to the previous year).

The increase in depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets is 
principally due to the reduction in the economic life of the IT platform used by the Geniac 
business.
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Investing activities notes and
accounting policies 
Investing activities are those activities that involve investing in the future operations 
of the Group, such as investments in property, plant & equipment and other capital 
expenditure.

9. Goodwill

10. Investments in principal subsidiaries – Composition of the Group

11. Investments accounted for using the equity method 

12. Other intangible assets

13. Property, plant and equipment

14. Leases

15. Other income and other financial items

Investing highlights

• The reduction in intangible assets is due to the net effect of the increase in 
amortisation following a reduction in the economic life of the Geniac platform offset by 
continued investment in our tools, systems and processes to deliver quality and 
excellence.

• Investment in property, plant and equipment and assets under construction reflects the 
continued investment in the Group’s property portfolio, in particular in London following 
the move from Grant Thornton House as part of the HS2 development.
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9. Goodwill

The movements in the net carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Cash Generating Units (CGU)

Goodwill was generated on the acquisition of the following entities, all of which have been 
integrated into the LLP. It is allocated across a number of CGU's, none of which is 
considered individually significant in comparison to the total carrying value of goodwill.

The smallest CGUs reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the partner responsible 
for operations, and expected to benefit from the goodwill on each acquisition has been 
identified and considered annually for impairment by comparing its carrying value to the 
forecast future cashflows based on the following year budget and growth assumptions.

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

Goodwill value estimation

In estimating the value-in-use of a cash generating unit (CGU) we make certain 
assumptions about the future cash flows to be generated by that unit. The assumptions to 
which the impairment calculation are most sensitive are:

• Growth rates – the growth rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the 
product lines and industries of the segments (all publicly available). It has been 
assumed that there will be steady state growth of 3% in future years.

• Discount rate – the rates used reflect appropriate adjustments relating to market risk 
and the specific risk factors of each segment. Future cash flows have been discounted 
at between 8% and 11% to reflect the relative risk profile of the relevant CGU.

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

Integration of businesses

When goodwill arises on a business combination it is allocated to the CGUs which will 
benefit from that acquisition, e.g. through synergies or access to the workforce of the 
acquired business. This allocation requires judgement in estimating how each of those 
CGUs are expected to benefit from that business combination.

This combined with the estimation of the future cash flows of these units and selection of a 
suitable discount rate mean that the determination of any impairment to this goodwill is 
highly subjective.

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Gross carrying amount

Balance 1 July 13,101 13,096

Net exchange difference - 5

Balance 30 June 13,101 13,101

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Robson Rhodes 9,562 9,562

Inderies Limited 1,831 1,831

Thomas May 1,041 1,041

Recovery Cost Auditing Limited 550 550

Grant Thornton FSBC Limited (formerly Navigant 
Consulting (Europe) Limited)

117 117

13,101 13,101
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9. Goodwill (continued)

Accounting policy
Goodwill recognition and impairment review

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits expected to arise from a business 
combination that cannot be attributed to individually identifiable and separable assets. 
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. The process of impairment testing for goodwill 
involves:

• Allocating goodwill to those CGU’s that are expected to benefit from synergies of a 
related business combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which 
management monitors goodwill.

• Calculating the recoverable amount of that CGU. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of the CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use.

• Reviewing the recoverable amount for each CGU by comparing it to the carrying amount 
of both goodwill and corporate assets assigned to the CGU, and recognising an 
impairment loss where the carrying value of the CGU is higher than its recoverable 
amount.

• The recoverable amount has been calculated on a value-in-use basis, using an 
extrapolation of budgeted cash flows, and assuming steady state growth of 3% in future 
years. 

• Applying any impairment loss to write down first the goodwill in that CGU and then pro-
rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit.

Management is not currently aware of any reasonably possible changes to its key estimates 
that would result in an impairment. The recoverable amounts are less than two years of the 
current year expected cash flows and are not particularly sensitive to either the discount rate 
or growth rate.
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10. Investments in principal subsidiaries –
Composition of the Group

Basis of consolidation accounting policy
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the LLP and all entities over which the LLP has control as at 30 June 2018. All Group entities have a reporting date of 30 June. 

All transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group entities. Where unrealised losses 
on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of Group 
entities have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of Group entities acquired or disposed of during the year are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of 
disposal, as applicable.

The assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a different functional currency are translated into Pounds Sterling upon consolidation. 

The income statements of these entities are translated into Pounds Sterling at the actual exchange rates at the date of the relevant transaction and the year end net assets are translated at 
year end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising from retranslation of the opening net assets are reported in other comprehensive income. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising 
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Exposure to foreign exchange differences resulting from the re-translation of the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are charged or credited to other comprehensive 
income and recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Fulwood Insurances 
Limited 

(Guernsey)

Grant Thornton 
Acquisitions No. 2 

Limited
(England)

Geniac UK Limited
(England)

Grant Thornton 
Services LLP 

(England)

Grant Thornton 
Specialist Services 
(Cayman) Limited 
(Cayman Islands)

Inderies Limited 
(England)

Grant Thornton 
Employee Benefits 
Consultancy LLP 

(England)

Grant Thornton
(British Virgin

Islands) Limited 
(British Virgin Islands)

Grant Thornton 
Business Services 

(England)

Geniac Holdings 
Limited

(England)
Key
 100% ownership
 Dormant or non-trading
(x) Country of incorporation

The Local Futures 
Group Limited 

(England)
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11. Investments accounted for using the 
equity method

The Group's share of profit from equity accounted investments is as follows:

Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method, 
Further details relating to each of these investments are contained in note A6.

The carrying amount of investments accounted for using the equity method is as follows:

At a glance: 

The Group has identified opportunities to leverage its experience through         
collaboration with other Grant Thornton International Member firms. In the year investment 
has been made in an operation in Belgium with 8 other Grant Thornton International 
Member firms.

Interest in the IVA business (associate)

Our interest in the IVA business was sold to the management of Aperture Debt Solutions 
LLP in 2015. We retained a 40% interest, which was initially measured at fair value. 

The carrying value represents amounts not yet paid up in cash, comprising prior year 
profits (£2.7m) and balances transferred on disposal (£6.4m).

The reduction in carrying value of £3.6m reflects the net cash received against balances 
transferred on disposal.

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Investment in joint ventures - -

Investments in associates 9,078 12,682

Total share of profit from equity accounted investments 9,078 12,682

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Investment in joint ventures - -

Investments in associates - 2,662

Total share of profit from equity accounted investments - 2,662

The Group’s share of cash flows from equity accounted investments is as follows:

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Investment in joint ventures - -

Investments in associates 3,604 9,496

Total investments accounted for using the equity method 3,604 9,496

Related Party Transactions:

Transactions with Associates

During 2018, the Group provided services to Aperture Debt Solutions LLP valued at £0.5m 
(2017: £0.6m). The outstanding balance of £0.1m (2017: £0.1m) due from Aperture Debt 
Solutions LLP is included in trade receivables.

During 2018, Grant Thornton E.U. Services NV provided services valued at £Nil (2017: 
£Nil). Their outstanding balance of £Nil (2017: £Nil) is included in trade receivables.

Transactions with Joint Ventures

During 2018, Grant Thornton Debt Solution Limited provided services valued at £Nil (2017: 
£Nil). Their outstanding balance of £Nil (2017: £Nil) is included in trade receivables.
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12. Other intangible assets

At a glance:

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets relate to software, both purchased from third parties and 
generated internally, which are amortised over the expected economic life of each asset. 

Investment has continued to been made in our tools, systems and processes to deliver 
quality and excellence. This has included internal investment in our internal finance 
systems, our people system, and Insight and Analytics. 

The impairment relates to the IT platform used by the Geniac business following the 
decision for this business to cease trading.

Software

£'000 

Contract 
assets

£’000

Total

£'000 

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 July 2017 15,965 - 15,965

Additions, separately acquired - 292 292

Additions, internally developed 1,937 - 1,937

Disposals (4,116) - (4,116)

Balance at 30 June 2018 13,786 292 14,078

Amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2017 8,120 - 8,120

Amortisation 2,331 73 2,404

Impairment 2,053 - 2,053

Disposal (4,116) - (4,116)

Balance at 30 June 2018 8,388 73 8,461

Carrying amount 30 June 2018 5,398 219 5,617

Software

£'000

Contract 
assets

£’000

Total

£'000

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 July 2016 11,051 - 11,051

Additions, separately acquired 35 - 35

Additions, internally developed 4,879 - 4,879

Balance at 30 June 2017 15,965 - 15,965

Amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2016 5,945 - 5,945

Amortisation 2,175 - 2,175

Balance at 30 June 2017 8,120 - 8,120

Carrying amount 30 June 2017 7,845 - 7,845

Significant management judgement or estimate: 

Intangible assets research and development

Distinguishing the research and development phases of a new customised software 
project and determining whether the recognition requirements for the capitalisation of 
development costs are met requires judgement. After capitalisation, management monitors 
whether the recognition requirements continue to be met and whether there are any 
indicators that capitalised costs may be impaired.
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12. Other intangible assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

All finite-lived intangible assets, including capitalised internally developed software, are 
accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs less residual values are 
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment 
testing. Software's useful live has been estimated at 4-7 years and contract assets are 
amortised over the life of the associated contract.

Any capitalised internally developed software that is not yet complete is not amortised until it 
is ready for use but is subject to impairment testing during this time.

Amortisation has been included within depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-
financial assets and are included within operating expenses in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income. .

Subsequent expenditure on the maintenance is expensed as incurred.

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the 
difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in 
profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

Accounting policy
Recognition and measurement
Initial recognition of other intangible assets

Expenditure on the research phase of projects is recognised as an expense as incurred. 
Costs that are directly attributable to a project’s development phase are recognised as 
intangible assets, provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

• The development costs can be measured reliably.

• The project is technically and commercially feasible.

• The Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project.

• The Group has the ability to use or sell the other intangible asset.

• The software will generate probable future economic benefits.

Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalisation are expensed as incurred.

Directly attributable costs include employee costs incurred on the other intangible asset 
development along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold
property

£'000

Furniture
and

equipment 
£'000

Office
equipment

£'000

Motor
cars

£'000 

Assets under 
construction

£’000
Total
£'000

Gross carrying 
amount

Balance 1 July 2017 39,698 12,756 10,781 5,090 2,838 71,163

Additions 4,273 1,931 206 1,645 183 8,238

Transfers 1,753 1,085 - - (2,838) -

Disposals (24,977) (9,884) (8,000) (1,360) - (44,221)

Net exchange 
differences

(6) (1) (2) - - (9)

Balance 30 June 
2018

20,741 5,887 2,985 5,375 183 35,171

Depreciation and 
impairment

Balance 1 July 2017 21,510 10,463 10,065 1,919 - 43,957

Disposals (13,781) (9,812) (8,000) (683) - (32,276)

Net exchange 
differences

(5) (1) (2) - - (8)

Depreciation 2,261 921 388 829 - 4,399

Balance 30 June 
2018

9,985 1,571 2,451 2,065 - 16,072

Carrying amount 30 
June 2018

10,756 4,316 534 3,310 183 19,099

Leasehold
property

£'000

Furniture
and

equipment
£'000

Office
equipment 

£'000

Motor
cars

£'000 

Assets
under

construction
£’000

Total
£'000

Gross carrying 
amount

Balance 1 July 2016 39,344 12,636 10,634 5,032 - 67,646

Additions 360 208 143 1,467 2,838 5,016

Disposals (18) (91) - (1,409) - (1,518)

Net exchange 
differences

12 3 4 - - 19

Balance 30 June 
2017

39,698 12,756 10,781 5,090 2,838 71,163

Depreciation and 
impairment

Balance 1 July 2016 19,742 9,812 9,636 1,833 - 41,023

Disposals (12) (43) - (735) - (790)

Net exchange 
differences

6 3 3 - - 12

Depreciation 1,774 691 426 821 - 3,712

Balance 30 June 
2017

21,510 10,463 10,065 1,919 - 43,957

Carrying amount 30 
June 2017

18,188 2,293 716 3,171 2,838 27,206

At a glance:

Property, plant and equipment

Additions to property, plant and equipment represents the continued investment in the existing property portfolio and moves to new offices, which are all held on operating leases.

Disposals represent the exiting of Grant Thornton House as part of the HS2 development, and other property moves. In addition, an exercise has been undertaken to identify assets no longer being 
used by the Group, all of which were fully depreciated.

Further compensation on the disposal of Grant Thornton House is expected and is considered to be a contingent asset at 30 June 2018. The timing and magnitude of this compensation is the subject 
to ongoing negotiations with HS2 Limited.

.
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The net book value of assets held under finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts 
was £565,000 all relating to motor cars (2017: £7,919,000; of which £7,396,000 relates to 
leasehold property and £523,000 to motor cars). The principal finance lease in 2017 related 
to Grant Thornton House.

Finance leases

Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and 
whether it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
leased asset. Key factors considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the 
economic life of the asset, the present value of the minimum lease payments in relation to 
the asset's fair value, and whether the Group obtains ownership of the asset at the end of 
the lease term.

The cost of incentives received in connection with property leases are allocated over the 
lease term on a straight line basis, or to the period to the next break clause, if shorter.

For leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are first allocated to each 
component based on the relative fair values of the respective lease interests. Each 
component is then evaluated separately for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into 
consideration the fact that land normally has an indefinite economic life.

The interest element of lease payments is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the 
period of the lease.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the related assets held under those finance leases. 
The lease agreements generally include fixed lease payments.

Accounting policy
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition cost, including any costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's management. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the value of an asset from 
cost to its estimated residual value over its estimated useful economic life. The following 
useful lives are applied:

1 In the case of leasehold property, expected useful lives are determined by reference to comparable owned assets or 
over the term of the lease, if shorter. 

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful lives are updated as required, but 
at least annually.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognised in profit or loss within gain or loss on sale of non-financial assets.

All depreciation and impairment charges are included within depreciation, amortisation and 
impairment of non-financial assets, and are included within operating expenses in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Leasehold property period of the lease1

Furniture and equipment 5-8 years

Office equipment 3-5 years

Motor cars 4 years
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14. Leases

The future minimum finance lease payments are as follows:

Further details relating to the finance leases are contained in note 19.

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Not later than one year 180 1,408

Later than one year and not later than five years 276 5,279

Later than five years - 68,850

Total future minimum lease payments 456 75,537

Finance charges - (63,782)

Present value of minimum lease payments 456 11,755

Future developments

Standard IFRS 16 Leasing

Application For annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, subject 
to EU endorsement.
Earlier application is permitted if IFRS 15 is applied.
It is anticipated that this standard will be applied for the accounts 
for the year ending 30 June 2020.

Summary IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases. Under the new standard 
most operating leases will be included in the statement of financial 
position. 

Anticipated impact Medium

Qualification & 
Project management

The assessment of lease arrangements, including transitional 
options and practical expedients, under IFRS 16 is ongoing. The 
primary categories of leased assets identified are properties 
currently held under operating leases, motor cars currently held 
under both finance and operating leases and IT hardware 
currently held under operating leases.

The Group leases offices, motor cars, and IT equipment under operating leases. The future 
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum operating lease payments due

All non-financing leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee, 
payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are 
expensed as incurred. 

Lease expense during the period amounts to £17,892,000 (2017: £16,294,000).

Within 1 year
£’000

1 to 5 years
£’000

After 5 years
£’000

Total
£’000

30 June 2018 15,462 43,001 9,091 67,554

30 June 2017 14,726 38,440 8,785 61,951

At a glance:

The reduction in minimum finance lease payments is primarily driven by the exiting 
of Grant Thornton House in December 2017.
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15. Other income and other financial items

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Other financial items

Profit/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets 519 (110)

Fair value movement on foreign exchange collars 62 50

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Other income

Property sub-let income 847 1,267

Within 1 year 
£’000

1 to 5 years 
£’000

After 5 years 
£’000

Total 
£’000

30 June 2018 121 - - 121

30 June 2017 517 606 - 1,123

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-
cancellable subleases at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

At a glance:

The reduction in sublease income is primarily driven by the exiting of Grant Thornton 
House in December 2017 which was partially sublet in previous years. This is also the 
cause of the reduction in future minimum payments expected to be received.
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Financing activities notes and
accounting policies 
Financing activities are those activities undertaken to raise finance to fund operating 
and investing activities. The main sources of financing are external financing such as 
bank loans, members’ interests and leases.

16. Cash and cash equivalents

17. Cash flow and financing activities

18. Future cash flow obligations

19. Borrowings

20. Capital management policies and procedures

21. Finance costs and finance income

22. Members’ interests

Financing highlights

• Increase in total members’ interests is due to actuarial gain on defined benefit schemes 
and excess statutory profit before members’ remuneration compared to drawings taken 
in the year.

• Borrowings increased in year, supporting investment in the IT systems, property, 
Enterprise and Quality and payments in relation to the pension schemes.

• The reduction in finance lease obligations is due to the disposal of Grant Thornton 
House to HS2 Limited.
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16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with 
other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the date of 
acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Cash at bank and in hand:

 GBP 6,022 17,975

 USD 7,491 5,890

 Euro 333 333

13,846 24,198

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Cash and cash equivalents 13,846 24,198

Bank loans and overdrafts (67,900) (55,500)

Finance leases and hire purchase contract -
current (180) (135)

Current net debt (54,234) (31,437)

Finance leases and hire purchase contract –
non-current (276) (11,630)

Net debt (54,510) (43,067)

Net debt comprises cash and cash equivalents and borrowings:
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17. Cash flow and financing activities

Note
At 30 June 2017

£’000

Net cash used in 
financing activities

£’000
Other non-cash

£’000
Re-allocation

£’000
At 30 June 2018

£’000

Borrowings Current 19 55,635 12,544 - (99) 68,080

Non-current * 19 11,630 - (11,453) 99 276

67,265 12,544 (11,453) - 68,356

Members’ interests 22 42,824 (55,048) 68,917 (6,211) 50,482

Former partners 3 2,157 (5,968) 418 6,211 2,818

Annuities to former partners 6 21,210 (2,162) (855) - 18,193

133,456 (50,634) 57,027 - 139,849

Note
At 30 June 2016

£’000

Net cash used in 
financing activities

£’000
Other non-cash

£’000
Re-allocation

£’000
At 30 June 2017

£’000

Borrowings Current 19 28,825 26,791 19 - 55,635

Non-current * 19 11,647 - (17) - 11,630

40,472 26,791 2 - 67,265

Members’ interests 22 45,370 (56,254) 62,790 (9,082) 42,824

Former partners 3 2,591 (9,516) - 9,082 2,157

Annuities to former partners 6 23,350 (2,406) 266 - 21,210

111,783 (41,385) 63,058 - 133,456

* Non-current borrowings represent finance leases and hire purchase contracts 
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18. Future cash flow obligations
(excluding revolving credit facility)

The above analysis of future cash flow obligations excludes the repayment of the revolving credit facility which, whilst contractually due within one year, is expected to be rolled over under 
the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility.  The Revolving Credit Facility expires in November 2023. Whilst the interest on the borrowings is not an obligation at 30 June 2018, an estimate 
(based on current rates) of the interest costs on the ongoing borrowings is included.

-

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

£'
00

0

Year ending 30 June

Pension contributions

Annuity payments

Interest

Operating leases

HP

Former partners

Total cashflow obligations

At a glance:

Future cashflow obligations

Following the last current triennial valuation of the defined benefit scheme annual deficit contributions to eliminate the funding shortfall by 31 December 2028.

The operating lease commitments represent the rent for the Group’s existing properties to the expected end of the current lease.
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19. Borrowings 

Borrowings include the following financial liabilities:

Liquidity risk analysis

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group might be unable to meet its obligations as they fall 
due. The Group manages its liquidity needs by periodically undertaking reviews of short, 
medium and long term financing requirements as well as continually monitoring working 
capital usage. A significant part of the Group's funding is from members' capital and a 
revolving credit facility of £111m. Members’ capital is only repayable following retirement. 
Net cash requirements are compared to available borrowing facilities in order to determine 
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows that available borrowing facilities are 
expected to be sufficient.

The Group's objective is to maintain cash balances sufficient to meet its liquidity 
requirements for 30-day periods at a minimum. This objective was met for the reporting 
periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount 
of committed credit facilities and the ability to call upon additional members’ capital, in line 
with the Membership Agreement.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing 
liquidity risk, in particular its cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables as detailed in 
note 16 and note 2. The Group's existing cash resources and trade receivables significantly 
exceed the current cash outflow requirements. Cash flows from trade and other receivables 
are all contractually due within six months.

Current Non-Current

30 June 
2018

£’000

30 June 
2017

£’000

30 June 
2018

£’000

30 June 
2017

£’000

Carrying amount at amortised cost:

Bank loans and overdrafts 67,900 55,500 - -

Finance leases and hire purchase contracts 180 135 276 11,630

68,080 55,635 276 11,630

At a glance:

Borrowings

The reduction in non-current borrowings is due to the finance lease on Grant 
Thornton House being derecognised on the disposal of this property as part of the 
HS2 development.

The increase in current borrowings has mainly been driven by additional payments 
into the pension fund as part of the ETV and investment in software and property, 
plant and equipment. 

Bank loans represent drawdowns against the revolving credit facility.
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19. Borrowings (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group's policy is to minimise cash flow interest rate risk and volatility on long-term 
financing. At 30 June 2018, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates 
through bank borrowings on its revolving credit facilities (1.1% over LIBOR); and members’ 
capital (5.0% over Bank of England Base Rate). The following table illustrates the sensitivity 
of profit and equity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/- 1% (2017: +/-
1%). These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of 
current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average market 
interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that 
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

The amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ to the 
carrying values of the liabilities at the reporting date.

In assessing and managing liquidity risks of its derivative financial instruments, the Group 
considers both contractual inflows and outflows. 

Market risk analysis

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically 
to interest rate risk and currency risk, which result from both its operating and investing 
activities. Currency risk analysis is provided in note A3.

Impact on profit for the year
Bank borrowings 

£'000
Members’ capital 

£'000

30 June 2018 614 456

30 June 2017 431 451

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual 
maturities (including interest payments where applicable) as summarised below:

This compares to the maturity of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities in the 
previous reporting periods as follows:

Current –
Less than 12 

months

Non-current –
More than 12 months

30 June 2018 £’000
1 to 5 years 

£’000

Later than 5 
years 
£’000

Bank loans and overdrafts 67,970 - -

Finance lease obligations 180 276

Trade and other payables 44,115 - -

Loans and other debts due to members 
within one year

60,159 - -

Total 172,424 276 -

Current –
Less than 12 

months

Non-current –
More than 12 months

30 June 2017 £’000
1 to 5 years 

£’000 

Later than 5 
years 
£’000 

Bank loans and overdrafts 55,515 - -

Finance lease obligations 1,408 5,279 68,850

Trade and other payables 46,303 - -

Derivative financial instruments 77 - -

Loans and other debts due to members 
within one year

53,805 - -

Total 157,108 5,279 68,850
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20. Capital management policies 
and procedures

The amounts managed as capital by the Group for the reporting periods under review 
are summarised as follows: 

The Group has honoured its covenant obligations during the period, including maintaining 
capital ratios.

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

• To ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

• To provide an adequate return to members

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total members' interests, comprising reserves 
(excluding the pension deficit) and loans and other debt due to / from members, as 
presented on the face of the statement of financial position. The net debt to members’ 
interests (excluding the pension deficit) ratio is a key covenant in the Group's revolving credit 
facility.

In addition, the Group targets a structure of members’ capital equal to net debt (measured at 
the lowest point in the Group's annual cash cycle).

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient 
overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. The Group manages the 
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of returns to members, increase capital from the 
members, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Cash and cash equivalents 13,846 24,198

Bank loans due in less than one year (67,900) (55,500)

Net debt (54,054) (31,302)

Members’ total interests 15,904 (2,854)

Pension deficit 73,065 93,464

Total members' interests (excluding pension deficit) 88,969 90,610

Percentage of net debt to members' interests 
(excluding pension deficit)

61% 35%
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21. Finance costs and finance income

Finance income for the reporting periods consists of the following:

Finance costs for the reporting periods consist of the following:

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Interest expense for borrowings at amortised cost:

Bank loans and overdrafts 1,015 850

Other borrowings at amortised cost 12 22

1,027 872

Interest expense for finance lease arrangements 636 1,422

Net interest expense on defined benefit liability 2,934 3,520

Unwinding of discount relating to former member 
annuity provisions

373 426

3,943 5,368

Finance costs 4,970 6,240

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 637 1,391

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest 
method. Dividends, other than those from investments in associates and joint ventures, are 
recognised at the time that the right to receive payment is established. Dividends from 
investments in associates and joint ventures are reflected in the equity accounting of these 
investments.
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22. Members’ interests

Revaluation 
reserve

£'000

Translation 
reserve

£'000
Other reserves

£'000

Total members'
other interests

£'000

Loans and other 
debts due to/(from) 

members 
£'000

Total members' 
interests 

£'000

At 1 July 2017 (318) 1,988 (47,348) (45,678) 42,824 (2,854)

Members’ remuneration charged as an expense - - - - 6,572 6,572

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division 
among members

- - 63,101 63,101 - 63,101

Members’ interests after profit for year (318) 1,988 15,753 17,423 49,396 66,819

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year - - (61,441) (61,441) 61,441 -

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members - - 561 561 - 561

Members’ capital introduced - - - - 4,000 4,000

Other amounts withdrawn by members - - - - 87 87

Drawings (including tax payments) - - - - (58,232) (58,232)

Transfer of capital to former members’ balances - - - - (3,875) (3,875)

Transfer of other amounts to former members' balances - - - - (2,335) (2,335)

Pension scheme actuarial gain - - 8,928 8,928 - 8,928

Movement in unrealised gains/losses on investments (5) - - (5) - (5)

Exchange gains on translation of foreign operations - (44) - (44) - (44)

At 30 June 2018 (323) 1,944 (36,199) (34,578) 50,482 15,904

At a glance:

Members’ interests

Members' other interests – other reserves classified as equity represents profits not yet allocated and differences between reported profit and profit to be allocated to members under the 
Membership Agreement. The principal differences relate to retained results of certain subsidiary undertakings, the provision for annuities to current and former members, pension scheme 
charges and the treatment of long leasehold interests.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences charged or credited to other comprehensive income on the translation of overseas operations.

Revaluation reserve represents the unrealised gains and losses on the revaluation of investments.

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  78  



22. Members’ interests (continued)

Revaluation 
reserve

£’000

Translation 
reserve

£’000
Other reserves

£’000

Total members’
other interests

£’000

Loans and other
debts due to/(from)

members
£’000

Total members’
interests

£’000

At 1 July 2016 (322) 1,917 (71,701) (70,106) 45,370 (24,736)

Members’ remuneration charged as an expense - - - - 5,995 5,995

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division 
among members

- - 69,305 69,305 - 69,305

Members’ interests after profit for year (322) 1,917 (2,396) (801) 51,365 50,564

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year - - (55,470) (55,470) 55,470 -

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members - - 584 584 - 584

Members’ capital introduced - - - - 5,000 5,000

Other amounts withdrawn by members - - - - 83 83

Drawings (including tax payments) - - - - (60,011) (60,011)

Transfer of capital to former members’ balances - - - - (3,825) (3,825)

Transfer of other amounts to former members' balances - - - - (5,258) (5,258)

Pension scheme actuarial gain - - 9,934 9,934 - 9,934

Movement in unrealised gains/losses on investments 4 - - 4 - 4

Exchange gains on translation of foreign operations - 71 - 71 - 71

At 30 June 2017 (318) 1,988 (47,348) (45,678) 42,824 (2,854)
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22. Members’ interests (continued)

Accounting policy
Divisible profits and members' remuneration

For a LLP, the basis of calculating profits for allocation may differ from the profits reflected in 
the financial statements, given the established need to seek to focus profit allocation on 
ensuring equity between different generations and populations of members.

Consolidation of the results of certain subsidiary undertakings, the provision for annuities to 
former members, pension scheme charges and the treatment of long leasehold interests are 
all items which generate differences between profits calculated for the purpose of allocation 
and those reported within the financial statements. Where such differences arise, they are 
not allocated to members as part of the division of profits but instead are effectively included 
within other reserves in the statement of financial position.

Depreciation and profits or losses on disposal of cars used by members, together with 
members' other motor expenses, are charged through the profit and loss account in arriving 
at profit before members' remuneration and profit shares. For profit sharing purposes, such 
members' motor expenses are automatically charged to each member on the basis of 
specific costs incurred. Members' fixed shares of profits (excluding discretionary fixed share 
bonuses) and interest earned on members' balances are also automatically allocated and, 
together with members' motor expenses, are treated as members' remuneration charged as 
an expense to the profit and loss account in arriving at profit available for discretionary 
division among members.

The remainder of profit shares, which have not been allocated until after the statement of 
financial position date, are treated in these financial statements as unallocated at the 
statement of financial position date and included within equity reserves.

Total members’ interests includes all amounts that the members have an interest in 
regardless of whether those amounts are classified as debt or equity in the statement of 
financial position.  Total members’ other interests shows the total members’ interests 
classified as equity in the statement of financial position.  The loans and other debts due to / 
from members are shown as loans and other debts due to members within one year in the 
statement of financial position and can be analysed as follows:

Members' capital is repayable and is therefore classified as a liability. Other than in 
exceptional cases, it is not repaid until after retirement. Because members may retire with 
less than one year's notice and typically have their capital repaid within one year of serving 
notice, members' capital is shown as being due within one year notwithstanding repayment 
could be made after more than one year at the discretion of the CEO.

2018 
£’000

2017 
£’000

Members’ capital classified as a liability 44,275 44,150

Amounts due to members – profits 15,884 9,655

Loans and other debts due to members 60,159 53,805

Amounts due from members included in trade and other receivables (9,677) (10,981)

50,482 42,824
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Related Party Transactions:

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management of the Group are defined as members of the Partnership Oversight 
Board and the Strategic Leadership Team. The LLP does not divide profits amongst 
members until after the financial statements have been finalised and approved by the 
members. The estimated profit entitlement due to the partnership's key management in 
respect of the current year totalled £7.7m. The actual profit allocated in respect of the 
previous year was £9.2m.

22. Members’ interests (continued)

Members Profit Share

The table above provides a reconciliation between the average profit per member calculated 
in accordance with IFRS and the average profit allocation per member. Profits are shared 
among members in accordance with agreed profit sharing arrangements. The average profit 
per member is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year before members' 
remuneration and profit shares by the average number of members. 

The profit attributable to the member with the largest entitlement was £1,910,300 (2017: 
£1,329,091).

Allocable profits take into account pension and annuity payments rather than pension and 
annuity charges and include sums allocated as interest, members' motor expenses and 
capital profits but exclude profits in certain subsidiary entities.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Average profit per member 373 407

Retirement annuities and other items 11 (21)

Retained profits for the year in subsidiary entities 
net of consolidation adjustments

(48) (21)

Average allocable profit per member 336 365

Grant Thornton annual report 2018  81  



Extended notes and accounting policies 

The extended notes provide additional disclosures, not included as key in either operating or financing activities

About the Financial Statements to 30 June 2018

A1. Operating expenses 

A2. Financial assets

A3. Financial liabilities

A4. Pensions

A5. Investments in subsidiaries 

A6. Investments accounted for using the equity method

A7. Post-reporting date events

The following are the detailed extended notes supporting the 
rest of the preceding financial statements.
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About the Financial Statements to 30 June 
2018

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation 
uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Those which have the most significant effect can be found in the 
following notes: 

Nature of operations

The principal activities of Grant Thornton UK LLP (the LLP) and its subsidiary entities 
(together the Group) are the provision of audit, tax and advisory services within the UK.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£) which is also the 
functional currency of the parent company and have been presented in round thousands 
(£’000)

General information and statement of compliance with IFRSs

The LLP, the Group’s ultimate parent entity, is a limited liability partnership registered in 
England and Wales. Its registered office and principal place of business is 30 Finsbury 
Square, London, EC2A 1AG.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and IFRS Interpretation Committee 
interpretations, as adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the Companies 
Act 2006 as applied by LLPs and the relevant principles of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice (SORP), Accounting by Limited Liability Partnerships, issued in July 2014, 
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

Page
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Changes in accounting policies

There were no new or revised standards that are applicable and effective for periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2017.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, and 
amendments to existing standards have been published by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) that are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group. 
Information on those expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements can be found in 
the following notes:

Going concern

After reviewing the Group’s forecasts and projections, the members have a reasonable 
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future and therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
its consolidated financial statements.

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's 
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement and 
EU endorsement. 
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86 Note A2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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A1. Operating expenses

Recognition and measurement

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss as the service is used or as incurred.

Operating expenses are stated after charging:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Cost of services rendered

Employment and related costs of fee earners 208,532 203,280

Other cost of services rendered 18,637 29,891

227,169 233,171

Other operating costs

Employment and related costs of non-fee earners 54,239 52,341

Other operating costs 104,529 102,575

158,768 154,916

Operating expenses 385,937 388,087

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Auditor's remuneration

Audit services – Group and LLP 130 130

Other services – subsidiary LLP and company 
audits

30 32

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-
financial assets

8,856 5,887
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A2. Financial assets

Financial assets at year end
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to 
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred.

The following table shows which of our assets are financial assets and the classification of those assets in accordance with IAS 39. 

The accounting policy for each class of financial asset is detailed below.

30 June 2018

Non-
financial 

asset
£’000

Available 
For Sale 

(Fair value) 
£’000 

Derivatives 
(Fair Value) 

£’000

Loans and 
receivables 
(amortised 

cost)
£’000 

Total 
£’000

Non-current assets

Goodwill 13,101 - - - 13,101

Other intangible 
assets

5,617 - - - 5,617

Property, plant and 
equipment

19,099 - - - 19,099

Investments 
accounted for using 
the equity method

9,078 - - - 9,078

Other long term 
financial assets

- 8,900 - - 8,900

Total non-current 
assets

46,895 8,900 - - 55,795

Current assets

Trade and other 
receivables

42,067 - - 183,294 225,361

Cash and cash 
equivalents

- - - 13,846 13,846

Total current assets 42,067 - - 197,140 239,207

30 June 2017

Non-
financial 

asset 
£’000

Available 
For Sale 

(Fair Value) 
£’000 

Derivatives 
(Fair Value) 

£’000

Loans and 
receivables 
(amortised 

cost)
£’000 

Total 
£’000

Non-current assets

Goodwill 13,101 - - - 13,101

Other intangible 
assets

7,845 - - - 7,845

Property, plant and 
equipment

27,206 - - - 27,206

Investments 
accounted for using 
the equity method

12,682 - - - 12,682

Other long term 
financial assets

- 7,304 - - 7,304

Total non-current 
assets

60,834 7,304 - - 68,138

Current assets

Trade and other 
receivables

31,246 - 127 171,740 203,113

Cash and cash 
equivalents

- - - 24,198 24,198

Total current assets 31,246 - 127 195,938 227,311
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A2. Financial assets (continued)

Accounting policy
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified into the following 
categories upon initial recognition: 

• Loans and receivables
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
• Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets

All financial assets, except for those at FVTPL, are measured initially at fair value, adjusted 
for transaction costs, and are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to 
identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of 
financial assets, which are described below.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are 
presented within finance costs, finance income or other financial items, except for 
impairment of trade receivables which is presented within operating expenses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for 
impairment. Under the amortised cost method the difference between the amount initially 
recognised and the redemption value is recorded in the income statement over the period of 
the borrowing on an effective interest rate basis. Discounting is omitted where the effect of 
discounting is immaterial.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or 
when other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. 
Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment 
in groups, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of the counterparty 
and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based on 
recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either classified as held for 
trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. 
Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or 
loss.

Future developments

Standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Application For annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
subject to EU endorsement.
It is expected that this will be adopted for the year ending 30 
June 2019.

Summary The new standard, IFRS 9, introduces extensive changes to 
IAS 39’s guidance on the classification and measurement of 
financial assets and introduces a new ‘expected credit loss’ 
model for the impairment of financial assets. 

Anticipated impact Low

Qualification & 
Project 
management

We are continuing to assess the impact of IFRS 9 and are 
not yet in a position to provide quantified information. 
At this stage, the main areas of expected impact are as 
follows:
 The classification and measurement of the Group's 

financial assets will need to be reviewed based on the 
new criteria that considers the assets' contractual cash 
flows and the business model in which they are 
managed. 

 An expected credit loss-based impairment will need to 
be recognised on the Group's trade receivables. At this 
stage, it is not expected that this will result in a material 
change in provisions for trade receivables. 

 It will no longer be possible to measure equity 
investments at cost less impairment and all such 
investments will instead be measured at fair value. 
Changes in fair value will be presented in profit or loss 
unless the Group makes an irrevocable designation to 
present movement in fair value in other comprehensive 
income.

 If the Group elects to take the fair value option for 
certain financial liabilities, fair value movements will be 
presented in other comprehensive income to the extent 
those changes relate to the Group's own
credit risk.
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A2. Financial assets (continued)

Risk management objectives and policies 

The Group is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s 
financial risk management is coordinated by its shared service centre, in close cooperation 
with the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT), and focuses on actively securing the Group’s 
short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the risk described below. The long term 
financial management is the responsibility of the SLT, with oversight from the Partnership 
Oversight Board (POB), and ultimately the members. 

Fair Value 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Listed investments 8,900 7,104

Other investments - 200

Derivative financial instruments - 127

Cash and cash equivalents 13,846 24,198

Trade and other receivables 183,294 171,740

206,040 203,369

Credit risk on other receivables

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group. The 
Group is exposed to this risk on receivables from customers, cash at bank and listed 
investments. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount 
of financial assets recognised at 30 June.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, money market funds, debentures and 
derivative financial instruments is considered negligible, since the counterparties are 
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial 
assets recognised at 30 June, as summarised below: 

AFS financial assets

AFS investments compromise listed investments at market value held by Fulwood Insurance 
Limited and other investments in other Grant Thornton International Limited member firms. 
The carrying amount of these investments are as follows: 

Fair Value 2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Non-current assets

Listed investments 8,900 7,104

Other investments - 200

8,900 7,304
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A3. Financial liabilities

30 June 2018

Non-
financial 

liability
£’000

Derivatives 
(Fair Value) 

£’000

Other 
liabilities 

(amortised 
cost)
£’000

Total
£’000

Non-current liabilities

Pension obligation 73,065 - - 73,065

Non-current borrowings - - 276 276

Provisions 36,264 - - 36,264

Total non-current liabilities 109,329 - 276 109,605

Current liabilities

Loans and other debts due to 
members within one year

- - 60,159 60,159

Current borrowings - - 68,080 68,080

Trade and other payables 47,464 - 43,026 90,490

Derivative financial instruments - - - -

Current tax liabilities 1,246 - - 1,246

Total current liabilities 48,710 - 171,265 219,975

30 June 2017

Non-
financial 

liability
£’000

Derivatives 
(Fair Value)

£’000

Other 
liabilities 

(amortised 
cost)
£’000

Total
£’000

Non-current liabilities

Pension obligation 93,464 - - 93,464

Non-current borrowings - - 11,630 11,630

Provisions 37,008 - - 37,008

Total non-current liabilities 130,472 - 11,630 142,102

Current liabilities

Loans and other debts due to 
members within one year

- - 53,805 53,805

Current borrowings - - 55,635 55,635

Trade and other payables 42,353 - 46,303 88,656

Derivative financial instruments - 77 - 77

Current tax liabilities 852 - - 852

Total current liabilities 43,205 77 155,743 199,025

Financial liabilities at year end
The following table shows which of our liabilities are financial liabilities and the classification of those liabilities in accordance with IAS 39. 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for derivatives and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or 
loss, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
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A3. Financial liabilities (continued)

To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk, non-sterling cash flows are 
regularly monitored. This review distinguishes the short-term foreign currency cash flow 
requirements from longer-term foreign currency cash flows. Where the amounts to be paid 
and received in a specific currency are expected to largely offset one another, no further 
action is undertaken as this naturally eliminates the risk; where they do not, the surplus 
currency is converted to Pounds Sterling and it is the rate that this is converted at that may 
change and results in risk exposure. This level of risk is accepted by management and not 
mitigated further.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities which expose the Group to 
currency risk are disclosed below. The amounts shown are those reported to key 
management translated into Pounds Sterling at the closing rate:

Given the limited exposure to short term foreign currency risk, average market volatility in 
exchange rates are not expected to result in material impacts on either profit or reserves.

Exposures to foreign currency exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume 
of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be 
representative of the Group's exposure to currency risk.

Accounting policy
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective 
Group entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot 
exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items denominated in foreign 
currency at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at the year end and are measured at historical cost 
(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items 
measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair 
value was determined.

Foreign currency sensitivity

Currency risk exists when a financial transaction is denominated in a currency other than 
that of the functional currency of the LLP and arises from the change in price of one currency 
in relation to another. The majority of the Group's transactions are carried out in Pounds 
Sterling and as such currency risk does not exist on these transactions. Exposures to 
currency exchange rates arise from the Group's overseas sales and purchases, which are 
primarily denominated in US dollars (USD) and Euros (EUR). The Group also holds a 
debenture denominated in USD. As at 30 June, the contractual cash flows of the Group's 
derivative financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

Short term exposure
USD

£’000

Long term exposure
USD 

£’000

30 June 2018

Financial assets 9,327 -

Financial liabilities (2,908) -

Total exposure 6,419 -

30 June 2017

Financial assets 2,894 -

Financial liabilities (1,964) -

Total exposure 930 -
Foreign exchange collars Current 

£’000
Non-current 

£’000

30 June 2018 - -

30 June 2017 1,000 -
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A4. Pensions

The legal obligation for benefits payable to employees on retirement under the plan remains 
with the Group, and as such in the event of insufficient investment returns, the Group may 
need to address this through a combination of increased levels of contributions or by making 
adjustments to the plans. 

The Group’s obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future retirement benefit 
that eligible employees have earned in return for their services. That benefit which is payable 
in the future is discounted to today’s value (the defined benefit obligation) and then the fair 
value of the scheme assets at the year end is deducted, which results in the defined benefit 
pension deficit recognised in the statement of financial position.  

The defined benefit obligation of the ongoing plan is measured by discounting the best 
estimate of future cash flows to be paid using the ‘projected unit’ method. This method is an 
accrued benefits valuation method which makes allowance for projected earnings of 
members in the future up to retirement. These calculations are performed annually by 
management with the assistance of qualified actuaries and involve many judgements and 
estimates, the main assumptions are set out later in this section. A sensitivity of the principal 
assumptions is set out in note 5. Movements in assumptions during the year are called 
‘remeasurement gains and losses’ and these are recognised in the period in which they arise 
through other comprehensive income. 

There are two types of pension schemes operated by the Group comprising ‘defined 
contribution’ plans which are open to employees of the Group, and two ‘defined benefit’ 
plans which are both closed to new employees. 

Defined contribution plans

In respect of the defined contribution plans, the Group makes fixed payments into separate 
funds on behalf of employees that have elected to save for their retirement. The Group has 
no further legal or constructive obligations to make additional payments over and above the 
fixed payments made on behalf of the employees. Any risks and rewards associated with 
these plans including investment risk are borne solely by the employees and not the Group. 

The Group’s obligation to make fixed contributions to the defined contribution plans are 
recognised as an operating cost in the income statement as the services are received from 
the employees. For 2018, total contributions in respect of such plans recognised as an 
expense were £21,723,000 (2017: £22,226,000). 

Defined benefit plans

Under such plans, pension scheme members receive cash payments during their retirement, 
the value of which is dependent upon the employee’s length of service and final salary. The 
Group operated two defined benefit pension plans during the year for the benefit of certain 
employees, the Grant Thornton Pensions Fund and the Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefit 
Scheme. Both schemes are closed to new employees, and the Grant Thornton Pension 
Fund was closed to further benefit accrual with effect from 31 October 2014. The Robson 
Rhodes Retirement Benefit Scheme was wound up in the year following the transfer of all 
the scheme assets and liabilities to an insurer in the year ended 30 June 2017, and a final 
premium adjustment payment in the year ended 30 June 2018.

The assets of the continuing plan are administered by Trustees in pension funds 
independent and legally separate from the assets of the Group. It is the responsibility of the 
Trustees of the plan to manage and invest the assets of the plan. The Trustees of the plan 
are required to  act in the best interest of the fund.  The Group has no representation on the 
boards of the fund.
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A4. Pensions (continued)

Defined benefit obligation

The areas which impact the defined benefit obligation position at the year end are as follows: 
• The settlement arose from 142 (2017: 46) pension scheme members of the fund 

exercising their right under the ETV offer made in the year ended 30 June 2017, in 
the year.

• The interest expense is the unwinding of one year’s movement in the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and is essentially determined by multiplying the 
discount rate by the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year and 
updated for contributions to the scheme and benefit payments made by the scheme. 
The interest expense is recognised through net finance costs in the income 
statement. 

• Remeasurement gains and losses arise from experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions (demographic and financial). Experience adjustments arise 
from comparing assumptions made when estimating the obligations and what has 
actually occurred. Key assumptions are explained in detail later in this section.  
Remeasurements gains and losses are recognised through other comprehensive 
income. 

• Benefits paid out to pension scheme members by the plans reduce the obligation. 

The details of the Group's defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Defined benefit obligation 1 July 434,754 429,043

Interest expense 10,633 12,584

Remeasurements – actuarial gains from changes 
in demographic assumptions

(2,010) (17,034)

Remeasurements – actuarial losses from changes 
in financial assumptions

(467) 35,245

Remeasurement gains on the defined benefit 
obligation – experience

652 2,468

Benefits paid (12,071) (19,277)

Settlements (43,767) (8,275)

Defined benefit obligation 30 June 387,724 434,754

Plan assets

Plan assets are measured at fair value and can change due to the following: 
• Interest income on plan assets is determined by multiplying the fair value of the 

plan assets at the start of the year by the discount rate taken as at the 
beginning of the year. This is recognised through net finance costs in the 
income statement. 

• Return on plan assets arise from differences between the actual return and 
interest income on plan assets and is recognised through other comprehensive 
income. 

• Employer contributions represent the cash payments made by the Group to the 
funds to be managed and invested. 

• Benefits paid represents cash paid to eligible pension scheme members and 
administrative fees are administrative expenses paid by the funds. 

The actual return on plan assets was  £15,358,000 in 2018 (2017: £39,791,000).

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Fair value of plan assets 1 July 341,290 318,294

Interest income 8,255 9,427

Return on scheme assets excluding amounts 
included in interest income

7,103 30,364

Employer contributions 14,405 11,113

Benefits paid (12,071) (19,277)

Assets distributed on settlements (44,323) (8,631)

Fair value of plan assets 30 June 314,659 341,290
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A4. Pensions (continued)

Plan assets can be broken down into the following categories of investments:

* This asset is a bulk annuity contract which provides income to match exactly the benefits, in terms of timing and 
amount, due to plan pension scheme members who were 70 or more years old at the time of its purchase in February 
2013. The asset is valued at the same amount as the present value of the plan liabilities it matches and has the effect 
of de-risking the liabilities relating to that part of the scheme’s pensioner population.

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group's own financial instruments or any assets 
used by Group companies. 

All equity and debt instruments, including alternative investments (managed funds) have 
quoted prices in active markets and so represent Level 1 valuations in the fair value 
hierarchy.

Total plan assets 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Equities 123,504 161,470

Corporate bonds 118,814 92,980

Alternative investments 39,256 42,738

Hedge funds 11,924 11,657

Cash 1,346 (241)

Buy in policy* 19,815 32,686

314,659 341,290
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A4. Pensions (continued)

The ongoing Grant Thornton Pension plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as 
interest rate risk, investment risk, longevity risk and inflation risk.

Interest rate risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate 
determined by reference to market yields on high quality corporate bonds. The estimated 
term of the bonds is consistent with the estimated term of the defined benefit obligation and 
it is denominated in sterling. A decrease in market yield on high quality corporate bonds will 
increase the Group's defined benefit liability, although it is expected that this would be offset 
partially by an increase in the fair value of certain of the plan assets. 

Investment risk

The plan assets at 30 June 2018 are predominantly equities, corporate bonds and 
alternative investments. The fair value of the plan assets is exposed to the property market 
and equity markets (both in the UK and overseas).

Longevity risk

The Group is required to provide benefits for life to the pension scheme members of the 
defined benefit scheme. Increases in the life expectancy of the pension scheme members 
will increase the defined benefit liability.

Inflation risk

A significant proportion of the defined benefit liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the 
inflation rate will increase the Group's liability. A portion of the plan assets are inflation-linked 
debt securities which will mitigate some of the effects of inflation. 

Significant actuarial assumptions

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of actuaries. 
Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference to market yields of high 
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be 
paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension 
obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and 
management's historical experience.

2018
%

2017
%

Expected return on assets –
Robson Rhodes scheme

n/a 2.75

Expected return on assets –
Grant Thornton scheme

2.75 2.75

Rate of revaluation of accrued and deferred pensions
- Grant Thornton scheme

2.15 2.20

Rate of revaluation of accrued and deferred pensions
- Robson Rhodes scheme

n/a 5.00

Rate of increase in pensions in payment – pre 1 July 
2006

3.00 3.00

Rate of increase in pensions in payment – post 30 
June 2006

2.00 2.00

Discount rate 2.75 2.75

Retail price inflation 3.15 3.20

Consumer price inflation 2.15 2.20

Mortality assumption 110% S2PA 
Light*

110% S2PA 
Light*

*Mortality rates were assumed to follow the 110% S2PA Light (2017: 110% S2PA Light), incorporating the CMI_2017 
projections with a long-term rate of improvement of 1% per annum for past and future years.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation was measured using the projected unit 
credit method.

Life expectancy Male Female

Currently aged 65 87.4 88.4

Aged 65 in 20 years 88.4 89.6
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A4. Pensions (continued)

Changes in the significant actuarial assumptions

Comparatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the 
Group’s income statement and statement of financial position. 

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation 
are the discount rate, the salary growth rate and the average life expectancy. 

A graph showing the sensitivity of the defined benefit liability to changes in the discount rate, 
inflation expectations and life expectancy is included in note 5.

In preparing the sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined using the same method (projected unit credit) as that used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position. 

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in one assumption while all other assumptions 
are kept the same. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the 
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur 
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Defined benefit plan expenses

The information above provides an explanation for the key movements in both the plans’ 
liabilities and plans’ assets during the year. The following sets out how these movements in 
the year have impacted the income statement and other comprehensive income. 

Amounts recognised in profit or loss related to the Group's defined benefit plans are as 
follows:

The current service cost is included in employee benefits expense. The net interest expense 
is included in finance costs.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Net interest expense 2,378 3,164

Settlement loss 556 356

Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 2,934 3,520

The asset ceiling reduces the carrying value of the surplus on the Robson Rhodes scheme 
to the value of future employer contributions still due to be paid under the current Schedule 
of Contributions. It is reconciled as follows:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Impact of asset ceiling at start of year - 242

Interest on asset ceiling - 7

Remeasurement of asset ceiling - (249)
Impact of asset ceiling at end of year - -
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A4. Pensions (continued)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income related to the Group's defined 
benefit plans are as follows:

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

Actuarial gain from changes in demographic 
assumptions

2,010 17,034

Actuarial losses/(gains) from changes in financial 
assumptions

467 (35,245)

Remeasurement losses on the defined benefit 
obligation – experience

(652) (2,468)

Return on assets excluding amounts included in 
interest expense

7,103 30,364

Total remeasurement gains on the defined benefit 
obligation

8,928 9,685

Remeasurement gains on impact of asset ceiling - 249

Total income recognised in other comprehensive 
income

8,928 9,934

All the expenses summarised above were included within items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss in the statement of other comprehensive income.

Other defined benefit plan information

The expected employer contributions to the scheme, including salary sacrifice component, in 
the year commencing 1 July 2018 are expected to be £7.0m (1 July 2017: £6.1m).

A subsidiary entity, Grant Thornton Services LLP (GT Services), is the principal employer to 
the Grant Thornton Pensions Fund, a defined benefit pension scheme, and was to the 
Robson Rhodes Retirement Benefit Scheme before it was wound up in the year ended 30 
June 2018. GT Services is the sole participating employer of the active pension scheme 
members of the GT scheme. Its immediate parent company, Grant Thornton Business 
Services (GT Business Services) is the sole participating employer of the active pension 
scheme members of the Robson Rhodes scheme, prior to it being wound up. The IAS 19 
obligations in respect of the schemes are set out above. The LLP pays GT Services and GT 
Business Services for the supply of employees to the LLP in accordance with the terms of a 
Supply of Services Agreement between the LLP and GT Services, such charges being 
sufficient to cover all of the employment costs of the employees, including all pension 
payments made by GT Services or GT Business Services to the scheme.

On 28 June 2004, the LLP provided a guarantee to the Trustees of the Grant Thornton 
Pensions Fund under which it has undertaken to pay immediately, following a demand 
properly served on it by the Trustees, any amount which becomes due and payable by GT 
Services and which remain unpaid by GT Services for a period of not less than two months 
from the due date.

In addition, on 29 March 2006, the LLP provided a further guarantee to the Trustees of the 
Grant Thornton Pensions Fund in connection with the contributions payable to it by GT 
Services. The guarantee is to enable the Trustees to provide a Type 1 Contingent Asset (as 
defined in section 6.1 of the document 'Guidance in relation to contingent assets' issued by 
the Board of the Pension Protection Fund in September 2006) to the Board of the Pensions 
Protection Fund. The guarantee was provided in connection with the Pensions Protection 
Fund Risk Based Levy and resulted in a significant reduction in the amount of the Risk 
Based Levy chargeable by the Pensions Protection Fund on the pension scheme. The 
obligation is limited to all present and future obligations and liabilities of GT Services to make 
payments to the scheme up to a maximum amount which, when added to the assets of the 
scheme, would result in the scheme being 105% funded on the date on which any liability 
under the guarantee arises, calculated on the basis set out in section 179 of the Pensions 
Act 2004.

The obligations to the continuing scheme is reflected in the statement of financial position of 
GT Services as the participating employer. The obligations are not reflected in the individual 
entity statement of financial position of the LLP because, apart from the contingent liability, 
no obligation or liability in connection with the scheme or the contributions payable to it exist 
within the individual entity either to the scheme or the principal/participating employers at the 
reporting date.
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A5. Investments in subsidiaries 

At 30 June 2018, the Group also held 100% of the ordinary share capital of, or interest in, 
the following companies and LLPs incorporated or registered in England, which are either 
dormant or non-trading:

1 directly owned by the LLP.
2 ownership is in the ordinary share capital of the unlimited company and limited companies, and memberships of 

LLP’s.
3 unlimited liability nominee companies in which the LLP has a 100% interest.

The registered office of the above subsidiaries is 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG, other than the following 
entities which are not incorporated in England:
Fulwood Insurances Limited ’s registered office is PO Box 33, Maison Trinity, Trinity Square, St Peter Port, Guernsey, 
GY1 4AT.
Grant Thornton (British Virgin Islands) Limited’s registered office is Intertrust Fiduciary Services BVI Limited, Ritter 
House, Wickhams Cay II, P.O. Box 4041, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110.
Grant Thornton Specialist Services (Cayman) Limited’s registered office is HSM Corporate services Ltd, PO Box 
31726, 68 Fort Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1 1207.

Set out below are details of the subsidiaries held directly by the Group:

Name of the subsidiary

Country of 
incorporation 
and principal 

place of 
business Principal activity

Proportion of ownership 
interests2 held by the 

Group at year end

2018 2017

Fulwood Insurances 
Limited1

Guernsey Insurance services 100% 100%

Geniac UK Limited England Provision of a 
platform for small 

businesses support

100% 100%

Grant Thornton (British 
Virgin Islands) Limited1

British Virgin 
Islands

Provision of 
insolvency and 

restructuring 
services

100% 100%

Grant Thornton Business 
Services1

England Provision of 
personnel to the 

Group

100% 100%

Grant Thornton Employee 
Benefits Consultancy 
LLP1

England Provision of benefits 
consultancy 

services

100% 100%

Grant Thornton Services 
LLP

England Provision of 
personnel to the 

Group

100% 100%

Grant Thornton
Specialist Services 
(Cayman) Limited1

Cayman 
Islands

Provision of 
insolvency and 

restructuring 
services

100% 100%

The Local Futures Group 
Limited

England Licensing of 
intellectual property

100% 100%

Barfreston Limited1
Grant Thornton Personal Financial Planning 
Limited1

Geniac Holdings Limited Grant Thornton Property Nominees 1, 3

Grant Thornton Limited1 Grant Thornton Trust Company Limited1

Grant Thornton Acquisitions Limited1 GTN1 Limited1

Grant Thornton Acquisitions No.2 Limited1 GTN2 Limited1

Grant Thornton Consulting Limited1 GTPN1 Limited1

Grant Thornton Contracts LLP1 GTPN2 Limited1

Grant Thornton Corporate Finance Limited1 Inderies Limited1

Grant Thornton Management Consultants 
Limited1

Local Knowledge (UK) Limited1

Grant Thornton Nominees1,3 Thornton Baker Limited1

Grant Thornton Pension Trustees Limited1
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A review of carrying amount against the net liabilities is set out below:

No dividends were received from Grant Thornton Debt Solutions Limited during the years 
2018 and 2017 and as Grant Thornton Debt Solutions Limited is a private company, 
therefore there are no quoted market prices available for its shares.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Total net liabilities (1,500) (1,553)

Proportion of ownership interests held by the Group 50% 50%

Carrying amount of the investment - -

A6. Investments accounted for using the 
equity method
Investment in joint venture

The Group has one joint venture as set out below:

Name of the entity

Country of incorporation 
and principal place of 
business Principal activity Registered office

Proportion of ownership interests held 
by the Group at year end
2018                             2017

Grant Thornton Debt Solutions 
Limited

Ireland Provision of personal debt advisory 
services

24-26 City Quay, Dublin 2 50%                              50%

Investment in joint venture

Summarised financial information for Grant Thornton Debt Solutions Limited is set out below:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets - -

Current assets 859 652

Total assets 859 652

Non-current liabilities - -

Current liabilities (2,359) (2,205)

Total liabilities (2,359) (2,205)

Net liabilities (1,500) (1,553)

Revenue 610 396

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for 
the year

64 (107)

Depreciation and amortisation - (2)

Tax expense - -

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

At 1 July 777 682

For the year (32) 53

Exchange adjustment 5 42

At 30 June 750 777

Group losses not recognised are:
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A6. Investments accounted for using the 
equity method (continued)

No dividends were received from Aperture Debt Solutions LLP during the period it has been 
an associate.

Aperture Debt Solutions LLP is a partnership, therefore there are no quoted market prices 
available for it.

The registered office of Aperture Debt Solutions is Water’s Edge, Clarendon Dock, Belfast, 
Northern Ireland, BT1 3BH.

Investment in associates

On 14 August 2015, the Group transferred its IVA business to Aperture Debt Solutions LLP, 
a new entity in which the Group retains a 40% equity interest and so the Group accounts for 
the interest as an associate. The profit sharing arrangements on certain contracts differ to 
this equity interest. This entity's principal place of business is Ireland.

Summarised financial information for Aperture Debt Solutions LLP is set out below:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets 72 67

Current assets 17,043 14,147

Total assets 17,115 14,214

Non-current liabilities (20,594) (9,253)

Current liabilities (2,313) (1,452)

Total liabilities (22,907) (10,705)

Net (liabilities)/assets (5,792) 3,509

Revenue 22,823 17,565

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (2,531) 3,293

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 
interest in this associate

9,056 12,682

On 2 May 2018, the Group subscribed for shares in Grant Thornton E.U. Services NV, 
together with 8 other GTIL member firms, giving the Group an 11% equity interest. Due to 
the significant influence that the Group considers it could have over this company, in 
managements opinion, it is considered to be an associate and accounted for using the equity 
method. The company has not traded since it’s inception, summarised financial information 
for is set out below:

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets - -

Current assets 200 -

Total assets 200 -

Non-current liabilities - -

Current liabilities - -

Total liabilities - -

Net assets 200 -

No dividends were received from Grant Thornton E.U. Services NV during the period it has 
been an associate.

Grant Thornton E.U. Services NV is a private company, therefore there are no quoted 
market prices available for it.

The registered office of Grant Thornton E.U. Services NV is Haren (1130 Brussels), 
Metrologielaan 10 box 15.
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A7. Post-reporting date events

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the 30 June 2018 and the date of 
authorisation of these financial statements except as reflected in the relevant notes, pensions (note 5).

There were no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2018 (2017: None) other than those in connection with 
guarantees given by the LLP relating to the defined benefit pension schemes and a guarantee provided of up 
to £2.5m in relation to an ongoing recovery & reorganisation contract.
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Statement of financial position for the 
parent entity Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Fixed assets

Goodwill 3 12,028 12,028

Other intangible assets 4 5,617 5,965

Tangible assets 5 18,923 27,039

Investments 6 11,364 15,296

47,932 60,328

Current assets

Debtors due < 1 year 7 209,818 193,477

Debtors due > 1 year 7 4,352 4,256

Cash at bank and in hand 6,201 6,481

220,371 204,214

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 (165,735) (149,878)

Net current assets 54,636 54,336

Total assets less current liabilities 102,568 114,664

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 9 (276) (11,630)

Provisions for liabilities 10 (30,328) (31,596)

Net assets excluding amounts due to members 71,964 71,438

Loans and other debts due to members within one year

Members’ capital classified as a liability 12 44,275 44,150

Other amounts 12 15,884 9,655

Equity

Members’ other interests – profit for the year 2, 12 55,052 52,166

Members’ other interests – other reserves classified as equity (43,247) (34,533)

Total equity and amounts due to members 71,964 71,438

The financial statements were approved 
by the Designated Members and authorised 
for issue on 7 December 2018.

David Dunckley

Chief Executive Officer

Simon Jones

Chief Financial Officer

Registered no: OC307742
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Statement of changes in equity for the 
parent entity Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Other reserves
£'000

Equity
£'000

Balance at 1 July 2017 17,633 17,633

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year (61,441) (61,441)

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members 561 561

Transactions with members (60,880) (60,880)

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division among members 61,624 61,624

Members' remuneration charged as an expense (6,572) (6,572)

Total comprehensive income for the year 55,052 55,052

Balance at 30 June 2018 11,805 11,805

Other reserves
£'000

Equity
£'000

Balance at 1 July 2016 20,353 20,353

Allocated profits in respect of the prior year (55,470) (55,470)

Tax adjustments on payment of annuities to former members 584 584

Transactions with members (54,886) (54,886)

Profit for the financial year available for discretionary division among members 58,161 58,161

Members' remuneration charged as an expense (5,995) (5,995)

Total comprehensive income for the year 52,166 52,166

Balance at 30 June 2017 17,633 17,633
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the parent financial 
statements together with the critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation 
are the same as those set out on pages 45, 54, 60 and 64 of the consolidated financial 
statements. Any accounting policies in addition to those applied in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements are detailed below. These polices have been consistently 
applied throughout the year and the preceding year. The true and fair override has been 
taken in respect of the non-amortisation of goodwill, which would otherwise have been 
£352,000, due to the consideration that the goodwill has an indefinite useful economic life. 

Basis of accounting

Grant Thornton UK LLP meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial 
Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The financial statements 
for Grant Thornton UK LLP have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial 
Reporting Standard 101) "Reduced Disclosure Framework".

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention.

Disclosure exemptions adopted

In preparing these financial statements the LLP has taken advantage of all disclosure 
exemptions conferred by FRS 101. Therefore these financial statements do not include: 

• A statement of cash flows and related notes for the LLP

• The requirements of IAS 24 related party disclosures to disclose related party 
transactions entered into between two or more members of the Group as they are wholly 
owned within the Group 

• Presentation of comparative reconciliations for intangible and tangible fixed assets 

• Disclosure of key management personnel compensation

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries and investments in joint ventures are shown at cost 
less provision for impairment.

Investments in associates are accounted for using equity accounting.
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

4. Intangible fixed assets

Details of the significant management judgements or estimates and impairment are included 
in note 12 of the Group financial statements. 

Software

£’000

Contract 
assets 

£’000

Total

£’000

Cost

At 1 July 2017 12,713 - 12,713

Additions 1,211 292 1,503

Disposals (4,116) - (4,116)

At 30 June 2018 9,808 292 10,100

Amortisation

At 1 July 2017 6,748 - 6,748

Charge for the year 1,778 73 1,851

Disposals (4,116) - (4,116)

At 30 June 2018 4,410 73 4,483

Net book amount at 30 June 2018 5,398 219 5,617

Net book amount at 30 June 2017 5,965 - 5,965

2. Profit and loss account
The LLP has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied by the 
Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (application of Companies Act 2006) 
Regulations 2008 and has not included its own profit and loss in these financial statements. 

3. Goodwill

Details of the significant management judgements or estimates and impairment are included 
in note 9 of the Group financial statements. 

Goodwill

£’000

Cost and net book value at 1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018 12,028
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

5. Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold
property

£’000

Short leasehold
property

£’000

Furniture and
equipment

£’000

Office
equipment

£’000

Motor cars

£’000

Assets under
construction

£’000

Total

£’000

Gross carrying amount

Balance 1 July 2017 17,783 21,505 12,635 10,644 5,090 2,838 70,495

Additions - 4,241 1,902 204 1,645 183 8,175

Transfers - 1,753 1,085 - - (2,838) -

Disposals (17,783) (7,194) (9,884) (8,000) (1,360) - (44,221)

Balance 30 June 2018 - 20,305 5,738 2,848 5,375 183 34,449

Depreciation 

Balance 1 July 2017 7,251 13,997 10,356 9,933 1,919 - 43,456

Provided in the year 64 2,159 911 383 829 - 4,346

Disposals (7,315) (6,466) (9,812) (8,000) (683) - (32,276)

Balance 30 June 2018 - 9,690 1,455 2,316 2,065 - 15,526

Net book amount 30 June 2018 - 10,615 4,283 532 3,310 183 18,923

Net book amount 30 June 2017 10,532 7,508 2,279 711 3,171 2,838 27,039
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Interests in associates

The movement in investments in associates is as follows:
6. Investments
Investments comprise the following:

Interests in subsidiaries

The movement in investments in subsidiaries is as follows:

A list of investments held by the LLP is set out in note A5 of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

2018 
£’000

2017 
£’000

Investments in subsidiaries 2,286 2,414

Investments in associates 9,078 12,682

Other investments - 200

11,364 15,296

Investments in subsidiaries 
£’000

Cost

At 1 July 2017 2,432

At 30 June 2018 2,432

Accumulated impairment

At 1 July 2017 18

Impairment in the year 128

At 30 June 2018 146

Net book amount at 30 June 2018 2,286

Net book amount at 30 June 2017 2,414

Investments in associates 
£’000

Cost

At 1 July 2017 12,682

Addition 22

Profit recognised in the year -

Cash receipts (3,626) 

At 30 June 2018 9,078

Net book amount at 30 June 2018 9,078

Net book amount at 30 June 2017 12,682
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year7. Debtors

Due < 1 year 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Trade debtors 106,222 99,034

Amounts due from group undertakings 166 4,166

Amounts recoverable on contracts 55,774 52,075

Other debtors 17,512 16,443

Amounts due from members 9,677 10,981

Prepayments and accrued income 20,467 10,778

209,818 193,477

Due > 1 year 2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Fully and compulsory convertible debentures 3,786 3,734

Prepayments and accrued income 566 522

4,352 4,256

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Bank loans 67,900 55,510

Excess payments on account 14,885 19,025

Trade creditors 4,832 5,148

Amounts owed to group undertakings 42,738 40,735

Taxation and social security 9,876 9,050

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 180 125

Other creditors 2,691 3,011

Derivative financial instruments - 77

Amounts due to former members 2,818 2,157

Provisions for foreseeable losses 1,774 1,839

Accruals and deferred income 18,041 13,201

165,735 149,878
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

10. Provisions for liabilities

The provision for claims is in respect of the estimated amounts for commercial settlements 
and professional indemnity claims. Property provisions are in respect of dilapidations and 
surplus properties. The nature of the claims and property provisions are such that the timing 
of the utilisation of those provisions is inherently difficult to predict.

9. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Amounts falling due after more than five years are as follows:

The LLP's future minimum finance lease payments are as follows:

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the related assets held under finance leases.
The lease agreements generally include fixed lease payments.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 276 11,630

276 11,630

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts - 11,438

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Not later than one year 180 1,408

Later than one year and not later than five years 276 5,279

Later than five years - 68,850

Total future minimum lease payments 456 75,537

Finance charges - (63,782)

Present value of minimum lease payments 456 11,755

Claim 
provisions 

£’000

Property 
provisions

£’000

Former
members’
annuities

£’000
Total
£’000

At 1 July 2017 6,861 3,525 21,210 31,596

New annuity obligations - - 602 602

Amortisation of discount - 105 373 478

Settlement of 
obligations during year

(576) (828) (2,723) (4,127)

Change in assumptions 
and experience losses

- - (1,269) (1,269)

Release to profit and 
loss account

(190) (594) - (784)

Provided during year in 
profit and loss account

1,662 2,170 - 3,832

At 30 June 2018 7,757 4,378 18,193 30,328
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

The provision for former members' annuities is expected to be utilised as follows:

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

In less than one year 2,428 2,612

After one and within five years 6,402 7,218

After five and within ten years 4,751 5,515

After ten and within twenty-five years 4,449 5,582

In more than twenty-five years 163 283

18,193 21,210

10. Provisions for liabilities (continued) 11. Capital commitments
At the end of the year the LLP had capital commitments of £430,000 (2017: £1,105,000) that 
were not provided for.
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Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

12. Members’ interests

Members’
other interests 

– Other
reserves

£’000 

Loans and
other debts

due to/(from)
members

£’000

Total
members’

interests
£’000

At 1 July 2017 17,633 42,824 60,457

Members’ remuneration charged as 
an expense

- 6,572 6,572

Profit for the financial year available for 
discretionary division among members

55,052 - 55,052

Members’ interests after profit for year 72,685 49,396 122,081

Allocated profits in respect of the prior 
year

(61,441) 61,441 -

Tax adjustments on payment of 
annuities to former members

561 - 561

Members’ capital introduced - 4,000 4,000

Other amounts withdrawn by members - 87 87

Drawings (including tax payments) - (58,232) (58,232)

Transfer of capital to former members’ 
balances

- (3,875) (3,875)

Transfer of other amounts to former 
members' balances

- (2,335) (2,335)

At 30 June 2018 11,805 50,482 62,287

Members’
other interests 

– Other
reserves

£’000 

Loans and
other debts

due to/(from)
members

£’000

Total
members’

interests
£’000

At 1 July 2016 20,353 45,370 65,723

Members’ remuneration charged as 
an expense

- 5,995 5,995

Profit for the financial year available for 
discretionary division among members

52,166 - 52,166

Members’ interests after profit for year 72,519 51,365 123,884

Allocated profits in respect of the prior 
year

(55,470) 55,470 -

Tax adjustments on payment of 
annuities to former members

584 - 584

Members’ capital introduced - 5,000 5,000

Other amounts withdrawn by members - 83 83

Drawings (including tax payments) - (60,011) (60,011)

Transfer of capital to former members’ 
balances

- (3,825) (3,825)

Transfer of other amounts to former 
members' balances

- (5,258) (5,258)

At 30 June 2017 17,633 42,824 60,457
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13. Commitments under operating leases
The Company's future minimum operating lease payments are as follows:

The Company's operating leases primarily relate to motor vehicles and office space. There 
are no contingent rentals.

Notes to the parent entity financial 
statements Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

14. Related party disclosures
Transactions with Group companies

As permitted by FRS 101 related party transactions with wholly owned Group entities have 
not been disclosed. 

Transactions with associates

During the year the Company entered into the following transactions with the Company's 
associated undertakings.

2018 
£’000

2017 
£’000

Due within one year 15,462 14,726

Due between one and five years 43,001 38,440

Due after more than five years 9,091 8,785

Total 67,554 61,951

2018 
£’000

2017 
£’000

Provision of services 492 550

Amounts owed by associated undertakings 111 62

Amounts owed to associate undertakings - -

2018 
£’000

2017 
£’000

Members’ capital classified as a liability 44,275 44,150

Amounts due to members – profits 15,884 9,655

Loans and other debts due to members 60,159 53,805

Amounts due from members included in trade 
and other receivables

(9,677) (10,981)

50,482 42,824

12. Members’ interests (continued)
The loans and other debts due to / (from) members within one year can be analysed as 
follows:
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Grant Thornton UK LLP (the ‘LLP’) for the year ended 30 June 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the LLP’s  affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnership (Accounts and Audit) 

(Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the LLP in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the LLP’s ability to continue to adopt the going 

concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 28, the members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members either intend to liquidate the limited liability partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Members of Grant Thornton UK LLP (continued)

Use of the audit report 
This report is made solely to the LLP’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the LLP’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the LLP and the LLP’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

William Neale Bussey (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Tower Bridge House
St Katharine’s Way
London
E1W 1DD

7 December 2018
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